
 1 

AGENDA WITH COMMENTARY 
 

GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
802 EAST VILAS 

GUTHRIE, OKLAHOMA 
 

MONDAY 
OCTOBER 08, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 

AGENDA: 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Establish a Quorum 
 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
5. Moment of Silence 
 
6. Comments to the Board by: 
 A. Citizens registered to speak to the Board 
 B. Board Members  
  
7. Superintendent’s Reports 
 
8. Consent Agenda………………………………………………………………..Pages 6-65 
 All of the following items, those items of a routine nature normally approved at 
           Board meetings, will be approved by one vote unless any Board member desires to 
           have a separate vote on any or all of these items.  The Consent Agenda consists of the 
           discussion, consideration and action on the following items: 
  
 A.   Minutes of regular meeting held on September 10, 2018 
 
 B. Minutes of special meeting held on September 25, 2018 
 
 C. Treasurer’s Report 
 
 D. Activity Fund Fundraisers as per attached list 
 
 E. Activity Fund Transfers as per attached list 
 
 F. Declare listed items as surplus 
 

1



 2 

 G. Fuel bids as recommended by bid committee 
 
 H. Encumbrances for General Fund #’s 484-649, Building Fund #’s 132-165,       

            Child Nutrition Fund #10, Building Bond Fund 2017 #’s 15-16,                        
            Casualty/Flood Ins. Recovery Fund #1 and listed change orders and Activity 
            Fund Reports 

 
 I. Out-of-State Trip Request: 

 Dr. Mike Simpson-National Conference on Education-Los Angeles, CA-
February 13-16, 2019 

 
J. Contracts/Agreements under $10,000 
 1.   Agreement with PeopleFacts for background checks for prospective          

      employees and volunteers for 2018-2019…………………….…Pages 58-65 
 
       Commentary: 

       This is our annual renewal agreement with PeopleFacts, formerly Trak-1, for 
background checks.  This is basically our backup service.  All employees must 
go through an OSBI fingerprint background check.  The PeopleFacts service is 
used when the OSBI report has not been received or has been delayed but is 
forthcoming.  PeopleFacts will verify any convictions that would be attributed 
to that individual.  The cost for this service for 2017-2018 was $800.  Doug 
Ogle will answer any questions. 

 
       RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
       The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 

9. Business Agenda: 
 A. Discussion and possible action regarding the 2018-2019 School Budget 
                                                                                                                                       Pages 66-99 
  Commentary: 
  A copy of the budget is included in your packet.  Ms. Michelle Chapple will make 

a presentation to the Board.  Michelle Chapple will answer any questions. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
  
 B. Recommendation, consideration and action upon Guthrie Jr. High Health      

Fair for 7th grade students November 13th and 15th, 2018…………….Page 100 
   
  Commentary: 

 This Health Fair has been held for a number of years at the Jr. High.  Classes are 
generally led by individuals from the Logan County Health Department, Guthrie 
Police Department, OSU Extension Office and FCA.  A letter from Bethany 
Knight, Guthrie Jr. High Counselor, is included in your packet outlining different 
subjects to be covered. Doug Ogle will answer any questions. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 

2



 3 

 
C. Recommendation, consideration and action to approve the transcription of    
        math and science credit options taught at Meridian Technology Center 

                                                                                                           Pages 101-109  
Commentary: 
We take this action every year.  This allows 10th, 11th and 12th grade students to 
take a math or science course at Meridian Technology that counts as credit at 
Guthrie High School.  Doug Ogle will answer any questions. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
 D. Recommendation, consideration and action upon revision to District Policy: 

• C-27 Administration of Federal Programs              Pages 110-117  
 
 Commentary: 

This is a recommendation from our legal counsel based on state and federal law.  
Dr. Simpson will answer any questions. 

  
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
E. Recommendation, consideration and action upon revision to District Policy: 

• D-21 Family and Medical Leave              Pages 118-122 
 
 Commentary: 

This is a recommendation from our legal counsel based on state and federal law.  
Dr. Simpson will answer any questions. 

 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
F. Recommendation, consideration and action upon revision to District Policy: 

• F-13 Administration of Medicine to Students             Pages 123-133 
 
  Commentary: 

This is a recommendation from our legal counsel based on state and federal law.  
Dr. Simpson will answer any questions. 

 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
G. Recommendation, consideration and action upon revision to District Policy: 

• F-18 Child Abuse, Neglect, Exploitation and Trafficking: Reporting and   
                                         Investigation Revised               Pages 134-144 
 
  Commentary: 

This is a recommendation from our legal counsel based on state and federal law.  
Dr. Simpson will answer any questions. 

3



 4 

 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
H. Recommendation, consideration and action upon revision to District Policy: 

• G-13 Distribution of Surveys                        Page 145 
 
  Commentary: 

This is a recommendation from our legal counsel based on state and federal law.  
Dr. Simpson will answer any questions. 

   
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
I. Recommendation, consideration and action upon allowing formation of a  
 STEM Club at GHS……………………………………………………..Page 146 
 
 Commentary: 
 Mr. LeGrande has asked to form a STEM Club at GHS in partnership with 

Langston University who would fund the program as well.  Doug Ogle will 
answer any questions. 

 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
J. Recommendation, consideration and action to authorize the Superintendent 

to proceed with the Memorandum of Understanding for the K20 GEAR UP 
for the Future Grant………………………………………..……..Pages 147-154 

 
 Commentary: 
 GEAR UP, Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs, 

is a federal grant provided by the U.S. Department of Education to help students 
prepare for and pursue a college education.  Doug Ogle and Dr. Simpson will 
answer any questions. 

 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
K. Recommendation, consideration and action upon change order #1 for Pope    
            Contracting, Inc. at Guthrie Junior High School……………....Pages 155-156 
 
 Commentary: 

  This change order refers to an addition of $14,795.55 for sidewalk replacement 
and drainage correction.  Dr. Simpson will answer any questions. 
 

 RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 

 
 

4



 5 

10.  Proposed executive session for the purpose of discussing employment of personnel, 
  FMLA requests, resignation/separation from employment and transfer of position 
  requests all as set out on the Personnel Reports, discussion of extra-duty 

assignments for 2018-2019, discussion on the appointment of an individual for 
vacant school board seat #2, and periodic annual evaluation and terms of 
employment of Dr. Michael Simpson, Superintendent of Schools, disclosure of 
which information would violate the confidentiality requirements of state and/or 
federal law all pursuant to 25 OKLA. STAT. Section 307 (B) 1 and 7 and 70 OKLA. 
STAT. Section 5-118 

  A.   Vote to go into executive session 
  B.   Acknowledge Board’s return to open session 
  C.   Statement of minutes of executive session 
 
11. Vote on action as set out on the Personnel Reports……………………………Page 157 
 
12. Action upon recommendation of extra-duty assignments as listed for 2018-2019 
                Page 158 
13. Consideration and action upon Superintendent’s contract 
                 
14. Recommendation, consideration and action to accept any resignations offered since 
            the posting of the agenda 
 
15. Discussion and possible action on new business not known about or could not have 

been reasonably foreseen at the time of the agenda posting 
 
16. Adjourn 
 
 
      Dr. Mike Simpson 
      Superintendent 
 
jf 
 
Posted by:   
 
Date:                Time:  
 
Place:    

5



 1 

GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 10, 2018 

 
MINUTES OF THE GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR 
MEETING HELD AT 7:00 P.M. IN THE OFFICE OF THE BOARD, 802 EAST VILAS, 
GUTHRIE, OKLAHOMA ON SEPTEMBER 10, 2018 
 
Board Members Present: Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Gina Davis, 

Terry Pennington, Janna Pierson, Travis 
Sallee, Tina Smedley and Sharon Watts 

 
District Level School Officials Present:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Superintendent 
  Doug Ogle, Assistant Superintendent 
  Carmen Walters, Executive Director of 
   Federal Programs/Elementary Ed 
  Michelle Chapple, Chief Financial Officer 
  Angie Smedley, Director of Special            
                                                                                                Education 
  Cody Thompson, Director of Operations 
  Dee Benson, Director of Technology 
  Kary Jarred, Deputy Minutes Clerk 
   
1. The meeting was called to order by President Sallee. 
 
2. Members Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Gina Davis, Terry Pennington, Janna Pierson, 

Travis Sallee, Tina Smedley and Sharon Watts were present for roll call. 
  
3. A quorum was established. 
 
4. President Sallee asked everyone present to stand and join him in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 
  
5. President Sallee asked everyone present to join him in a Moment of Silence. 
 
6A. President Sallee asked the Superintendent if there were any citizens registered to 

speak to the Board. 
       
 Superintendent Simpson stated there were 7 citizens registered to speak to the 

Board: 
 
 Mr. Bob Davis spoke to the Board regarding the cornerstone ceremony. 
  
 Mr. Steve Hanna spoke to the Board regarding the cornerstone. 

6



 2 

 Ms. Jackie Ross spoke to the Board regarding the cornerstone ceremony. 
 
 Mr. Jim Case spoke to the Board regarding Christianity. 
 
 Mr. George Kelley spoke to the Board regarding Charter Oak School. 
 
 Mr. Philip Moseley spoke to the Board regarding the cornerstone. 
 
 Ms. Tonya Ratcliff spoke to the Board regarding Masonic support. 
  
6B. President Sallee called for any comments to the Board by Board members. 
 
 Member Smedley thanked Dr. Simpson, Cody Thompson, teachers and staff for the 

amount of work they put in to open the new school and transition to neighborhood 
schools. 

 
 Member Pennington thanked the Board and the schools and announced that he 

would be resigning tonight due to severe medical issues.  He also said goodbye to 
Mr. Frank Davis as he passed away last night. 

 
 President Sallee thanked Member Pennington for his service to the Board. 
 
 Member Watts agreed with President Sallee. 
 
 Member Davis thanked those who participated in the Cross Country Meet on 

Friday in the pouring rain. 
 
7. President Sallee called for the Superintendent’s Reports. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson reported on the following: 
 

Gave condolences to the Frank Davis family at his passing on Sunday evening. 
 
Thanked Member Pennington for his service and for putting kids first. 
 
Gave an update regarding the start of the school year.  Congratulated Cody 
Thompson and all of the Charter Oak and elementary staff for getting things done.  
Announced we challenged many people, including families.  The staff has done an 
amazing job.  Transportation has been the biggest overhaul.  We continue to look at 
that carefully regarding costs and safety of our students.   
 
Introduced Lt. Shawn Lewellyn who is the new SRO at Charter Oak Elementary 
from the LCSO.  We are working to enhance our security even more.  Students 
cannot learn if they do not feel safe.   
 

7



 3 

Gave a construction update regarding Charter Oak Elementary and GJHS.  The 
weather has hampered our goals.  We still need to finish the sidewalks at Charter 
Oak as well as pour the basketball court.  We are hoping for sun and dry weather.  
We are around 3 weeks out as far as being able to use the cafeteria and 6 weeks out 
from the gym being completed.  We’ve done most of the brick cleaning at GJHS and 
have done lots of the waterproofing. 
 
Announced that film crews will be using Jelsma Stadium to film “The Mustard 
Seed”.  They will be paying to use our facilities. 
 

8. President Sallee called for action on the Consent Agenda. 
 
 Member Pierson requested Item 8B be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

consideration. 
 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Smedley to approve the Consent 

Agenda excluding Item 8B. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Davis to approve Item 8B, minutes 

of special meeting held on August 29, 2018. 
  
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 2 abstention-Members Pennington and Sallee 

abstaining. 
  
9A. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action upon Gifted 

and Talented Committee for 2018-2019. 
 
 A motion was made by Pennington and seconded by Watts to approve the Gifted 

and Talented Committee for 2018-2019. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
9B. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action upon 

Professional Development Committee for 2018-2019. 
 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Watts to approve the Professional 

Development Committee for 2018-2019. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
9C. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action on agreement 

with Supplemental Health Care to provide an Educational Interpreter for 2018-
2019. 

8



 4 

 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Watts to approve agreement with 

Supplemental Health Care to provide an Educational Interpreter for 2018-2019. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
9D. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action upon contract 

with The Stacy Group, Inc. for architectural services for 2018-2019. 
 
 A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Davis to approve the contract with 

The Stacy Group, Inc. for architectural services for 2018-2019. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 1 nay-Member Pennington voting nay. 
 
9E. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action upon Faver 

Alternative School Handbook for 2018-2019. 
 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Smedley to approve Faver 

Alternative School Handbook for 2018-2019. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
9F. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action upon 2018-

2019 Estimate of Needs as prepared by Putnam & Company, PLLC and 2017-2018 
Financial Statement and the authority to publish the same. 

  
 A motion was made by Pennington and seconded by Watts to approve the 2018-2019 

Estimate of Needs as prepared by Putnam & Company, PLLC and 2017-2018 
Financial Statement and the authority to publish the same. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
9G. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action upon revision 

to District Policy: 
• F-6 Guthrie Public Schools Wellness Policy 

 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Watts to approve the revision to 

District Policy: 
• F-6 Guthrie Public Schools Wellness Policy 

  
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
  
9H. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action upon $.10 

decrease for 4th grade student lunch meals. 

9



 5 

 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Davis to approve a $.10 decrease 
for 4th grade student lunch meals. 

 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
9I. President Sallee called for consideration and vote to approve or not to approve 

installation of a corner stone by the Grand Lodge on the northeast corner of 
Charter Oak Elementary. 

 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Pennington to approve the 

installation of a corner stone by the Grand Lodge on the northeast corner of 
Charter Oak Elementary. 

 
 Discussion followed after motion. 
 
 The motion failed with 3 ayes and 4 nays-Members Bennett-Johnson, Davis, Watts 

and Sallee voting nay. 
 
10. President Sallee called for proposed executive session for the purpose of discussing 

employment of personnel, FMLA requests, resignation/separation from 
employment and transfer of position requests all as set out on the Personnel 
Reports, discussing and considering the matter of Student A, periodic annual 
evaluation and terms of employment of Dr. Michael Simpson, Superintendent of 
Schools and extra-duty assignments as listed for 2018-2019, disclosure of which 
information would violate the confidentiality requirements of state and/or federal 
law all pursuant to 25 OKLA. STAT. Section 307 (B) 1 and 7. 

 
10A. A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Smedley to go into executive session. 
 
 The motion carried with 7 ayes and 0 nays.  Executive session began at 8:14 p.m. 
 
 Member Pennington left the meeting at 8:49 p.m. 
 
10B. President Sallee acknowledged the Board’s return to open session at 9:32 p.m. 
 
10C. President Sallee stated that in executive session only those items listed in Agenda 

Item 10 were discussed and no votes were taken. 
 
11. President Sallee called for a vote on action as set out on the Personnel Reports. 
 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Watts to approve action as set out on 

the Personnel Reports. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 

10



 6 

12. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and vote to grant or not 
to grant Student A an exception to District Policy F-2. 

 
 A motion was made by Davis and seconded by Watts to grant Student A an 

exception to District Policy F-2. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
13. President Sallee called for action upon recommendation of extra-duty assignments 

as listed for 2018-2019. 
 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to approve extra-

duty assignments as listed for 2018-2019. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
14. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action to accept any 

resignations offered since the posting of the agenda. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson stated there were no resignations offered since the posting 

of the agenda. 
  
15. President Sallee called for discussion and possible action on new business not known 

about or could not have been reasonably foreseen at the time of the agenda posting. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson stated there was no new business. 
 
16. A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Watts to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 9:34 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
   
Jana Frey, Minutes Clerk 
 
 
 
     
Travis Sallee, Board President 

11



 1 

GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 25, 2018 

 
MINUTES OF THE GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION SPECIAL 
MEETING HELD AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE OFFICE OF THE BOARD, 802 E. VILAS, 
GUTHRIE, OKLAHOMA ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2018 
 
Board Members Present: Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Gina Davis, 

Janna Pierson, Travis Sallee, Tina 
Smedley and Sharon Watts 

 
District Level School Officials Present:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Superintendent 
  Doug Ogle, Assistant Superintendent 
  Carmen Walters, Executive Director of 
   Federal Programs/Elementary Ed 
  Cody Thompson, Director of Operations  
       
1. The meeting was called to order by President Sallee. 
 
2. Members Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Gina Davis, Janna Pierson, Travis Sallee, Tina 

Smedley and Sharon Watts were present for roll call. 
  
3. A quorum was established. 
 
4. President Sallee asked everyone present to stand and join him in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 
  
5. President Sallee asked everyone present to join him in a Moment of Silence. 
 
6. President Sallee called for proposed executive session for the purpose of discussing 

the resignation of Terry Pennington and for the purpose of confidential 
communications between the Board of Education and its attorney concerning a 
pending EEOC charge, specifically Charge Number 56-2018-00990, the Board’s 
attorney having advised the Board that disclosure of the communications would 
seriously impair the ability of the Board to handle the proceedings/investigation in 
the public interest and disclosure of which information would violate the 
confidentiality requirements of state and/or federal law all pursuant to 25 OKLA. 
STAT. Section 307 (B) 1, 4 and 7, and Okla. Stat. tit. 70, Section 5-118. 

 
6A. A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to go into executive 

session. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays.  Executive session began at 6:01 p.m. 

12



 2 

6B. President Sallee acknowledged the Board’s return to open session at 6:59 p.m. 
 
6C. President Sallee stated that in executive session only those items listed in Agenda 

Item 6 were discussed and no votes were taken. 
 
7. President Sallee called for recommendation, consideration and action to accept 

resignation of Terry Pennington from Board Position #2. 
 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to accept 

resignation of Terry Pennington from Board Position #2. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
8. President Sallee called for motion, consideration and vote to authorize the 

Superintendent to proceed with the handling of the EEOC proceedings/investigation 
in a manner consistent with the discussion in executive session. 

 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Watts to authorize the 

Superintendent to proceed with the handling of the EEOC proceedings/investigation 
in a manner consistent with the discussion in executive session. 

 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
9. A motion was made by Watts and seconded by Bennett-Johnson to adjourn the 

meeting. 
 
 The motion carried with 6 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 
 
 
 
   
Jana Frey, Minutes Clerk 
 
 
 
     
Travis Sallee, Board President 

13



14



15



 

GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
ACTIVITY FUND FUNDRAISER REQUEST 

As of 9/30/2018 
 

a. Central PTO, #803  Roma’s night-10% of proceeds donated  
 

b. HS Library, #856  Previous year yearbook on CD sales 
 
c. HS FCCLA, #878  Dog biscuit sales 
 
d. HS FCCLA, #878  RADA kitchenware  
 
e. HS FCCLA, #878  Paint Bluejay mascot on driveways 
 
f. HS FCCLA, #878  Teacher luncheon 
 
g. HS FCCLA, #878  Bake sale-Christmas “Santa” grams        
 
h. Lady Jays BB, #881 Sale advertising banners to businesses  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amendment Requests 
 

1. HS FCCLA, 878 Amend vendor to Sam’s Club & dates to   
                                    10/15/18-10/26/18 
2. HS Vocal, 902 Amend the dates to 11/1/18-11/6/18 due to  

   technical issues 
3. Ch. Oak PTO, 841 Boo Gram’s vendor change to Raymond     

Geddes & Company, Inc. 711 Belair Rd., Baltimore MD  21206 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



Page 1 of 7

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 484 - 649

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:16 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
195.00BATTERIES FOR HANDHELD

RADIOS
WIRELESS TECHOLOGIES, INC4384309/04/2018484

1,000.00FLEET TIRES AND REPAIRSWALKER TIRE DTR LLC1420109/05/2018485
2,078.92QSTRAINTS FOR BUSCHALK'S TRUCK PARTS, INC.4223409/05/2018486

65.06IGNITION SWITCHES PER QUOTE
19744

MIDWEST BUS SALES, INC.1268209/05/2018487

149.00MASTER CYLINDER FOR DUCE
TRUCK

BOYCE EQUIP. & PARTS CO., INC.1783009/05/2018488

2,474.40UNLEADED FUELRED ROCK DISTRIBUTING CO.1328609/05/2018489
2,592.00Smart PanelPIRAINO CONSULTING, INC.4348909/05/2018490
2,000.00Blanket for Radios and PartsRADIOS UNLIMITED, INC.1535409/05/2018491

94,000.00SPEECH SERVICE CONTRACTUSA STAFFING SERVICES, LLC4420809/06/2018492
10.00BUS NUMBERS/TRANSPORTATIONJAYLENE SMITH4415209/10/2018493

446.92FRONT DRUMS/TRANSPORTATIONPENSKE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, US, LLC1661109/10/2018494
537.60XLG BUS NUMBERS PER

QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION
CHALK'S TRUCK PARTS, INC.4223409/10/2018495

274.40SEATBELTS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

CHALK'S TRUCK PARTS, INC.4223409/10/2018496

1,500.00TOWING
SERVICES//TRANSPORTATION

JERRY D. JONES1184909/10/2018497

87.27LIBRARY
SUPPLIES/MANN/FOGARTY

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018498

40.00HEATER CORE FOR TRUCK
92/TRANSPORTATION

AUTO ZONE, ALLDATA & AAZ
COMMERCIAL

4126009/10/2018499

500.00MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 2018-
19

JAMIE KAY ALEXANDER8131609/10/2018500

100.00TABLET FOR STUDENT USE/SPED
CLASSROOM/HS

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018501

65.99PRINTER CARTRIDGE FOR SP ED
CLASSROOM

QUILL CORPORATION1322909/10/2018502

50.00CLASSROOM SUPPLY FOR SP
ED/GUES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018503

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/T.
BLEWETT/COTTERAL

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018504

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/J.
DELANEY/COTTERAL

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018505

150.00$150.00 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/A.
LOWE/CHARTER OAK

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018506

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
SUND/CHARTER OAK

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018507

173.07MILEAGE REIMB/ALT ED
TRAINING/BENSON/FAVER

JUANA R BENSON8170809/10/2018508

142.22$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
HELTON/FOGARTY

SPORT SUPPLY GROUP, INC4278909/10/2018509

50.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/B.
TAYLOR/GUES

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018510

100.00$100 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/B.
TAYLOR/GUES

MARDEL, INC.1244709/10/2018511

37



Page 2 of 7

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 484 - 649

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:16 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/T.

ADAMS/GUES
MARDEL, INC.1244709/10/2018512

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
ROBINSON/GUES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018513

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
CROCKETT/GUES

OKC SAMS CLUB, # 81174191209/10/2018514

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/A.
ROSS/JH

OFFICE DEPOT, INC.1291009/10/2018515

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
WOOD/JH

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018516

1,500.00BLANKET PO FOR CLASSROOM
SUPPLIES/FACS/OWEN/JH

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018517

1,375.00PLTW ENGINEERING
NOTEBOOKS/STEM/PETERMAN/JH

CREATIVE NOTEBOOK SOLUTIONS, LLC4364209/10/2018518

800.00CONTEST ENTRY
FEES/BAND/BLACKBURN/HS

OKLAHOMA SECONDARY SCHOOL1298009/10/2018519

200.00SCRIPTS AND
MATERIALS/DRAMA/BERRYMAN/
HS

HEUER PUBLISHING, LLC4116409/10/2018520

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
BERRYMAN/HS

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018521

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/L.
BAKER/HS

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018522

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/G.
SALAS/HS

AMERICAN EAGLE CO., INC.1386409/10/2018523

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/E.
SAVORY/HS

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018524

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/J.
MURRAY/HS

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL,
INC.

1557109/10/2018525

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/L.
PORTER/HS

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018526

235.56SENSORS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

ROBERTS TRUCK CENTER OF OK LLC4012309/10/2018527

696.72REAR DRUMS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

PENSKE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, US, LLC1661109/10/2018528

1,100.00FRONT END
ALIGNMENT/REPAIRS/VAN
#88/TRANSPORTATION

JOHN VANCE MOTORS, INC.1193309/10/2018529

88.80RELEASE PINS
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

MIDWEST BUS SALES, INC.1268209/10/2018530

1,122.88BRAKES AND DRUMS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

PENSKE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, US, LLC1661109/10/2018531

93.00HOTEL
STAY/THROCKMORTON/TRAINING

B&K HOTELS LLC4420909/10/2018532

30.00MEAL PER DIEM/CLINTON LEAD
TO SUCCESS TRAINING

DUSTIN GENE THROCKMORTON8348509/10/2018533

58.54LIBRARY
SUPPLIES/MANN/FOGARTY

EARLYCHILDHOOD, LLC4073309/10/2018534

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/K.
WELCH/CHARTER OAK

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018535
38



Page 3 of 7

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 484 - 649

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:16 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.

KEITH/HS
WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/10/2018536

35.00LIGHT SOCKETS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

MIDWEST BUS SALES, INC.1268209/11/2018537

84.88FRONT MAIN SEALS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

ROBERTS TRUCK CENTER OF OK LLC4012309/11/2018538

562.70MISC PARTS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

PENSKE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, US, LLC1661109/11/2018539

62.20S CAM BUSHINGS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

PENSKE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, US, LLC1661109/11/2018540

68,000.00CONTRACT FOR EDUCATIONAL
INTERPRETER/SPED

SHC SERVICES, INC4355109/11/2018541

500.00BLANKET FOR OFFICE
SUPPLIES/ADMIN

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/11/2018542

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/M.
CAMPBELL/COTTERAL

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/11/2018543

420.00TSA MEMBERSHIP
FEES/STEM/DARCY/JH

TECHNOLOGY STUDENT ASSOCIATION1043709/11/2018544

500.00SHOW SUPPLIES &
MATERIALS/AG/HS

OUTBACK LABS, LLC4414709/11/2018545

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/T.
JORDAN/CENTRAL

MARDEL, INC.1244709/11/2018546

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
PORTER/HS

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/11/2018547

500.00SUPPLIES FOR FAIR/AG/DRAKE/HSSULLIVAN SUPPLY INC.1378909/11/2018548
3,400.00CURRICULUM LICENSING/JHIXL LEARNING, INC.1773609/11/2018549

34.00$34 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
FIELDS/GUES

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/11/2018550

728.56SUPPLIES/SIGNAGE/FOGARTYAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/11/2018551
113.40$114 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.

FIELDS/GUES
AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION4029109/11/2018552

15,000.00SECURITY FOR ELEMENTARY SITESTROY CODY WITHEY4421109/13/2018553
70.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.

MURRAY/CENTRAL
SCHOOL SPECIALTY, INC4141609/13/2018554

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/B.
PAUL/JH

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/13/2018555

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/B.
PERRING/HS

OFFICE DEPOT, INC.1291009/14/2018556

15,000.00SECURITY FOR ELEMENTARY SITESRYAN SIMPSON4421309/17/2018557
270.002018 FALL CONFERENCE

REGISTRATION/SPED
OKLAHOMA SCHOOL PSYCHOLOGICAL
ASSN

1301809/17/2018558

787.50GIRLS BB
UNIFORMS/HS/ATHLETICS

BSN SPORTS, INC.1370409/17/2018559

80.00$80 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
MURRAY/CENTRAL

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/17/2018560

459.00REFRIGERATOR FOR SPECIAL ED
ROOM/HS

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES1161909/17/2018561

177.54CURRICULUM FOR SP ED
CLASSROOM/GUES

DJC HOLDINGS, LLC1790909/17/2018562

39



Page 4 of 7

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 484 - 649

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:16 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
54.80MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT/PI

MEETING/MAKER/HS
JESSICA NICOLE MAKER8390409/17/2018563

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/D.
SHAFFER/CHARTER OAK

SCHOOL SPECIALTY, INC4141609/17/2018564

1,750.00SUBSCRIPTIONS/BOOKS/LIBRARY/
FIELDS/GUES

MT LIBRARY SERVICES1203109/18/2018565

290.00LIBRARY SUPPLIES/FIELDS/GUESSTAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL,
INC.

1557109/18/2018566

40.00READING
JOURNALS/LIBRARY/FIELDS/GUES

TEACHER SYNERGY, LLC4382109/18/2018567

150.00LIBRARY SUPPLIES/FIELDS/GUESDEMCO, INC1092409/18/2018568
75.00$75 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/L.

BENHAM/GUES
WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/18/2018569

75.00$75 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/L.
BENHAM/GUES

MARDEL, INC.1244709/18/2018570

50.00$50 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
GILBERT/GUES

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/18/2018571

100.00$100 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
GILBERT/GUES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/18/2018572

75.00$75 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/M.
SMITHSON/GUES

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/18/2018573

75.00$75 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/M.
SMITHSON/GUES

MARDEL, INC.1244709/18/2018574

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
MORGAN/GUES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/18/2018575

78.48$78 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
HOSKINS/GUES

TEACHER SYNERGY, LLC4382109/18/2018576

600.00MILEAGE/PARKING
REIMBURSEMENT/GT/GUES

CHERYL A PRATT8055509/18/2018577

35.00TERMINALS & ISOLATORS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

MIDWEST BUS SALES, INC.1268209/18/2018578

50.28NUTS, BOLTS, WASHERS FOR
BUS/TRANSPORTATION

PENSKE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, US, LLC1661109/18/2018579

84.88SEAL KIT FOR BUS 53 PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

ROBERTS TRUCK CENTER OF OK LLC4012309/18/2018580

50.00OFFICE SUPPLIES/CHARTER OAKQUILL CORPORATION1322909/18/2018581
100.00SPECIAL SVCS DIRECTOR

TRAINING/SPED
ODSS CONFERENCE1290309/19/2018582

400.00ALIGNMENT & REPAIRS ON BUS
54/TRANSPORTATION

DESHIELDS TRUCK SERVICE, INC.4207709/19/2018583

1,199.00HOTEL FOR TULSA STATE
FAIR/DRAKE/AG/HS

W2015/FARGO HOTELS REALTY, LP4054509/19/2018584

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/J.
JORDAN/HS

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/19/2018585

218.00SPEECH WORKSHOP/SPEDPRENTKE ROMICH COMPANY4422109/19/2018586
150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.

BROWN/COTTERAL
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/19/2018587

376.00HOTEL FOR TULSA STATE
FAIR/RENNICK/AG/HS

W2015/FARGO HOTELS REALTY, LP4054509/20/2018588

40



Page 5 of 7

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 484 - 649

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:16 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
485.00FFA SCARVES &

TIES/WILLIAMS/AG/HS
NATIONAL FFA ORGANIZATION1031109/20/2018589

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
ONLEY/CHARTER OAK

LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS1217109/20/2018590

50.00$50 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/E.
HARRIS/CENTRAL

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/20/2018591

837.00HOTEL STAY/LEADERSHIP
TRAINING/THROCKMORTON/HS

B&K HOTELS LLC4420909/20/2018592

270.00MEAL PER DIEM/LEADERSHIP
TRAINING 2018-19

DUSTIN GENE THROCKMORTON8348509/20/2018593

361.00PSYCH SUPPLIES/SPEDHAWTHORNE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES,
INC

1156509/20/2018594

700.00BAND CLINICIAN/HSLISA M HOEL4088709/20/2018595
500.00DRUMLINE CLINICIAN/BAND/HSKENNETH WOODS4419809/20/2018596
438.84SHOULDER STRAPS & BRACKET

PER QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION
CHALK'S TRUCK PARTS, INC.4223409/20/2018597

300.00MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT/2018-
19

GLORIA E SALAS8224909/20/2018598

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/A.
WILLIAMS/FOGARTY

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/21/2018599

30.98LIBRARY
SUPPLIES/MANN/FOGARTY

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/21/2018600

97.63LIBRARY
SUPPLIES/MANN/FOGARTY

DEMCO, INC1092409/21/2018601

100.80LIBRARY
SUPPLIES/MANN/FOGARTY

FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS, INC1437709/21/2018602

272.97LIBRARY
SUPPLIES/MANN/FOGARTY

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/21/2018603

292.09LIBRARY
MATERIALS/MANN/FOGARTY

LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS1217109/21/2018604

620.98LIBRARY
MATERIALS/MANN/FOGARTY

CEREBELLUM CORPORATION1226409/21/2018605

770.00BREATHER HOUSINGS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

CHALK'S TRUCK PARTS, INC.4223409/21/2018606

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/J.
LUDLOW/GUES

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/21/2018607

15,000.00SECURITY FOR ELEMENTARY SITESJOSE ROMAN BOTELLO4422409/21/2018608
25.00OK TRANSITION

TRAINING/KURIGER/SPED
OKLAHOMA REHABILITATION
ASSOCIATION

1800109/21/2018609

150.00MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT/SPED
TRAINING

TAMARA KAYE KURIGER8311309/21/2018610

160.00CLASSROOM
SUPPLIES/FOGARTY/SPED

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/21/2018611

180.00CLASSROOM
SUPPLIES/FOGARTY/SPED

LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS1217109/21/2018612

2,289.20LIBRARY BOOKS/HUDSON/HSFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS, INC1437709/21/2018613
2,576.00WALL

PADS/WRESTLING/ATHLETICS/HS
AK ATHLETIC EQUIPMENT, INC.4302009/21/2018614

110.00SOFTBALL JERSEYS/ATHLETICS/HSBSN SPORTS, INC.1370409/24/2018615 41



Page 6 of 7

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 484 - 649

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:16 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
17,244.00COPY PAPER FOR DISTRICT PER

QUOTE
SOUTHWEST PAPER, INC - OKC1596909/24/2018616

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/J.
WILLIAMS/CHARTER OAK

SCHOOL SPECIALTY, INC4141609/24/2018617

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.
LAUSEN/CHARTER OAK

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/24/2018618

53.97$54 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/E.
DAVIS/CHARTER OAK

OTC BRANDS, INC.1564409/24/2018619

19.69$25 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/E.
DAVIS/CHARTER OAK

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/24/2018620

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/K.
BEEBY/HS

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/25/2018621

30.00BINDING SERVICE/ADMINANNA COFFIN1626109/25/2018622
70.00CARBON

DIOXIDE/TRANSPORTATION
LAMPTON WELDING SUPPLY COMPANY,
INC

1217309/26/2018623

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
ADAMS-PAYNE/GUES

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/26/2018624

15,000.00SECURITY FOR ELEMENTARY SITESJASON WILLIAM HAMILTON4082309/26/2018625
78.18PROF DEV MANUALS/NORTONAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/26/2018626

249.95RESOURCE BOOK/SCHOOL NURSEAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/26/2018627
69.99WALKIE TALKIES FOR SP ED USEAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/26/2018628

480.00POWER WASHER
PUMP/TRANSPORTATION

CHASE ENTERPRISES, INC1738409/26/2018629

350.00SHOP SUPPLIES &
MATERIALS/AG/HS

LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.1238709/27/2018630

100.00SUPPLIES FOR SHOWS &
SHOP/AG/HS

WILLOBY'S FEED AND  OUTFITTERS, LLC1428009/27/2018631

19,091.00FUEL PER BIDEARNHEART CRESCENT LLC4403309/27/2018632
62.20SEALS & BUSHINGS PER

QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION
PENSKE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES, US, LLC1661109/27/2018633

1,386.86BUS SEATS/TRANSPORTATIONROBERTS TRUCK CENTER OF OK LLC4012309/27/2018634
743.61BOOKS FOR

LIBRARY/MANN/FOGARTY
COUGHLAN COMPANIES, LLC4410709/27/2018635

1,400.00BOOKS FOR
LIBRARY/MANN/FOGARTY

FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS, INC1437709/27/2018636

76.34$70 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/E.
DAVIS/CHARTER OAK

ERIC ARMIN INC.4192609/27/2018637

144.72$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/B.
DEARING/JH

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/27/2018638

150.00$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/C.
RYAN/JH

WALMART COMMUNITY1420709/27/2018639

377.19SUPPLIES/DARCY/STEM/JHAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/27/2018640
2,552.00FLIGHT & SPACE

SUPPLIES/PETERMAN/STEM/JH
PROJECT LEAD THE WAY, INC.1772709/27/2018641

745.72HEATER CORE, HARNESS,MIRROR
KIT PER QUOTE/TRANSP.

CHALK'S TRUCK PARTS, INC.4223409/28/2018642

3,012.25MISC BUS PARTS PER
QUOTE/TRANSPORTATION

MIDWEST BUS SALES, INC.1268209/28/2018643

42



Page 7 of 7

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 484 - 649

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:16 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
25,110.00PROPERTY INSURANCE/CHARTER

OAK
OKLAHOMA SCHOOLS INSURANCE
GROUP

1726110/01/2018644

500.00BOOKS FOR LIBRARY/FIELDS/GUESMT LIBRARY SERVICES1203110/01/2018645
113.29LIBRARY SUPPLIES/FIELDS/GUESKENT ADHESIVE PRODUCTS COMPANY4422510/01/2018646
150.00$150 CLASSROOM

SUPPLIES/EWY/GUES
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599410/01/2018647

125.00JACK FOR SHEEP
TRAILER/DRAKE/AG/HS

CITIBANK\TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT
PLAN

4138810/01/2018648

1,500.00SUPPLIES FOR
OFFICE/BUFFORD/FOGARTY

QUILL CORPORATION1322910/01/2018649

$351,197.02Report Total:

$0.00Payroll Total:

$351,197.02Non-Payroll Total:

43



Page 1 of 2

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: Building, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 132 - 165

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:31 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
1,000.00DISTRICT PARTS AND SUPPLIESBRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738709/04/2018132
1,300.00COMPRESSOR OIL PRESSURE

SWITCH FOR GUES
ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT, INC.1749109/04/2018133

289.90LAVATORY FAUCETS AND PARTS
FOR FOGARTY

CENTRAL OKLAHOMA WINNELSON4401309/04/2018134

1,000.00MOVING TEACHERSA-1 FREEMAN MOVING & STORAGE LLC4416509/04/2018135
1,100.00FENCE MATERIAL FOR GUES

SPECIAL NEEDS
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES1161909/10/2018136

732.15KEY DUPLICATORW. W. GRAINGER1145309/10/2018137
1,500.00DISTRICT HVAC PARTS AND

SUPPLIES
BRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738709/10/2018138

1,000.00DISTRICT PARTS AND SUPPLIESOKLAHOMA HOME CENTERS, INC.1296709/10/2018139
30.22RU 46 KEY BLANKSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/10/2018140

1,000.00HVAC TOOLS AND SUPPLIESBRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738709/11/2018141
207.28DISTRICT PLUMBING SUPPLIESCENTRAL OKLAHOMA WINNELSON4401309/11/2018142

1,749.80DISTRICT CUSTODIAL SUPPLIESSOUTHWEST PAPER, INC - OKC1596909/11/2018143
101.10BLACK RHINO GLOVESTREAT'S SOLUTIONS, LLC4374909/11/2018144

2,370.00R22 FREON FOR GUESBRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738709/11/2018145
4,500.00LIGHTING SYSTEM/SOFTBALL

FIELD/ATHLETICS
SHAWNEE LIGHTING SYSTEMS1360809/13/2018146

1,500.00PAINT AND SUPPLIES FOR
ATHLETIC FIELDS

LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.1238709/18/2018147

144.95COMMERCIAL GRADE DOOR
HINGES

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/18/2018148

954.50TRASH BARRELS FOR HSTREAT'S SOLUTIONS, LLC4374909/18/2018149
750.00TREE SERVICE AT FOGARTYCHRISTOPHER CODY HAYES4397309/18/2018150
700.00HARD SURFACE CUTTING TEETH

FOR AUGER
BECK IMPLEMENT & TRAILER1017009/18/2018151

80.00KNEE PADSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/20/2018152
1,368.20DISTRICT CUSTODIAL SUPPLIESSOUTHWEST PAPER, INC - OKC1596909/21/2018153
3,085.49DISTRICT CUSTODIAL SUPPLIESTREAT'S SOLUTIONS, LLC4374909/21/2018154

389.40ELEVATOR LIGHT BULBS AND
EMERGENCY LIGHT BATTERIES

VOSS ELECTRIC CO.1418909/25/2018155

3,167.34PKG UNIT FOR FOGARTY
CLASSROOM

BRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738709/25/2018156

27.60SINK AERATORSCENTRAL OKLAHOMA WINNELSON4401309/25/2018157
80.70SCRUBBER PARTSSOUTHWEST PAPER, INC - OKC1596909/26/2018158

387.64CONTROL BOARDS AND EXHAUST
FANS

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1599409/26/2018159

219.18OFFICE CHAIR AND FOOTRESTOFFICE DEPOT, INC.1291009/26/2018160
211.24OFFICE CHAIREDMOND SAM'S CLUB #62671349709/26/2018161

1,500.00DISTRICT HVAC PARTS AND
SUPPLIES

BRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738709/26/2018162

3,400.00LAWN CARE AT CHARTER OAKJOHN HUDSON1662609/26/2018163
289.96DOOR STOPS AND RUBBER SHOESROBERT BROOKE & ASSOCIATES4200409/27/2018164
500.00LAWN EQUIPMENT AND REPAIRSHOMETOWN RENTAL & FEED, INC.1467409/27/2018165

44



Page 2 of 2

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: Building, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 132 - 165

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:31 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No

$36,636.65Report Total:

$0.00Payroll Total:

$36,636.65Non-Payroll Total:

45



Page 1 of 1

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: CHILD NUTRITION FUND, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 10 - 10

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:20:46 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
27.80MEAL ACCOUNT

REFUND/MIRANDA FARRIS
PARENT/STUDENT REFUND4374809/26/201810

$27.80Report Total:

$0.00Payroll Total:

$27.80Non-Payroll Total:

46



Page 1 of 1

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: Building Bond 2017, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 15 - 16

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:21:00 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
2,923.73TRASH CANS AND MATS FOR

CHARTER OAK
TREAT'S SOLUTIONS, LLC4374909/10/201815

6,510.00DOCUMENT
CAMERAS/TECHNOLOGY/CHARTE
R OAK

TROXELL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.4421409/18/201816

$9,433.73Report Total:

$0.00Payroll Total:

$9,433.73Non-Payroll Total:

47



Page 1 of 1

Purchase Order Register

Year: 2018-2019, Fund: CASUALTY/FLOOD INS. RECOVERY, Date Range: 7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019, PO Range: 1 - 1

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:21:15 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
17,924.96GUES COMPRESSOR PER QUOTEBRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738710/01/20181

$17,924.96Report Total:

$0.00Payroll Total:

$17,924.96Non-Payroll Total:

48



Page 1 of 1

Change Order Listing

Fund: GEN FUND-FOR OP, Year: 2018-2019, ReferenceDate: PO Approval Date, Date Range: 9/1/2018 -
10/1/2018, PO Range: 1 - 483, Include Negative Changes: True

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:21:56 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
-410.89FEES AND SUPPORT 2018-

2019/TECHNOLOGY
SCHOOLDUDE.COM, INC.1754907/01/201898

-20.00FUEL TANK COMPLIANCE
INSPECTION/TRANSPORTATION

STATEWIDE COMPLIANCE SERVICES, INC1735807/01/2018153

-10.80BLANKET FOR SUPPLIES/AG/HSHOBBY LOBBY STORES, INC.1161007/02/2018161
-4.76BLANKET FOR SUPPLIES/AG/HSOKLAHOMA HOME CENTERS, INC.1296707/02/2018162

-29.00WRECKER
SERVICES/TRANSPORTATION

JERRY D. JONES1184907/09/2018183

-8.34FLEET PARTS/TRANSPORTATIONO'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, INC.1289907/18/2018231
-1.74TOOLS/EQUIP/SUPPLIES FOR AG

PROGRAM/HS
LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.1238707/19/2018237

70.80CLASSROOM MATERIAL/SPECIAL
ED

KATHERYNE B PAYNE EDUCATION
CENTER

1312307/19/2018239

-2.65$75 CLASSROOM SUPPLY/D.
HAYS/GUES

MARDEL, INC.1244707/23/2018247

-39.34OFFICE
SUPPLIES/TRANSPORTATION

WALMART COMMUNITY1420707/23/2018251

-1.18$100 CLASSROOM SUPPLY/J.
BENSON/FAVER

WALMART COMMUNITY1420707/24/2018255

-3.86$50 CLASSROOM SUPPLY/J.
BENSON/FAVER

MARDEL, INC.1244707/24/2018256

-29.48AG BUILDING MATERIALS/HSLOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.1238707/24/2018258
1.29$150 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/S.

WHITEHEAD/GUES
WALMART COMMUNITY1420707/30/2018280

-0.91$75 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES/E.
CARPENTER/GUES

MARDEL, INC.1244707/30/2018282

10.07SUMMER CONFERENCE
REIMBURSEMENT/J. MAKER/HS

JESSICA NICOLE MAKER8390407/30/2018285

-168.65PRINTING FOR 2018-19/CHARTER
OAK

LOREN L JONES1268607/31/2018291

0.10SHOW SUPPLIES &
MATERIALS/AG/HS

WILLOBY'S FEED AND  OUTFITTERS, LLC1428008/06/2018299

77.00EQUIPMENT & INSTRUMENT
REPAIR/BAND/HS

PALEN MUSIC CENTER, INC.4299208/06/2018300

($572.34)Report Total:

$0.00Payroll Total:

($572.34)Non-Payroll Total:

49



Page 1 of 1

Change Order Listing

Fund: Building, Year: 2018-2019, ReferenceDate: PO Approval Date, Date Range: 9/1/2018 - 10/1/2018, PO
Range: 1 - 131, Include Negative Changes: True

Guthrie Public Schools10/01/2018 3:22:27 PM

Options:

AmountDescriptionVendorVendor NoDatePO No
250.00REPAIR FOGARTY GYM FLOOROKLAHOMA FLOORING AND4412907/01/20184
275.16AUGUST TEACHER MOVES, PER

QUOTE
A-1 FREEMAN MOVING & STORAGE LLC4416507/01/201830

510.00DOOR REPAIRS AT HS AND
COTTERAL CAFE

CONSTRUCTION BUILDING SPECIALTIES,I1676607/01/201838

-10.10LONG SHANK PADLOCKS FOR
HVAC UNITS AT CO

OKLAHOMA HOME CENTERS, INC.1296707/11/201855

-9.21DISTRICT ELECTRICAL REPAIRSS. T. BOLDING  III1724907/18/201864
-8.37DISTRICT PARTS AND SUPPLIESOKLAHOMA HOME CENTERS, INC.1296707/18/201865
-5.00FURNITURE FOR BOC/ATHLETICSATHLON II ENTERPRISES, INC.1697807/30/201875
79.00FENCING MATERIAL FOR CHARTER

OAK
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES1161907/31/201879

-969.08COMPRESSOR FOR GUESBRADFORD INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CORP1738708/06/201885
129.29DISTRICT PARTS AND SUPPLIESOKLAHOMA HOME CENTERS, INC.1296708/06/201886

$241.69Report Total:

$0.00Payroll Total:

$241.69Non-Payroll Total:

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



September 26, 2018 

Guthrie Public Schools Board of Education, 
I would like to request your approval of the Guthrie Junior High's annual Health Fair. 
The Health Fair is for seventh grade students and is tentatively planned for Tuesday, 
November 13th and Thursday, November 15th. Following is a list of the presenter's with 
a description of their presentations. 

Nutrition and Portion Size presented by Logan County Health Department, will focus on 
reading food labels and understanding what is an appropriate portion size and exactly 
what nutrients are in the food you are choosing to eat. 

Bullying Prevention/Leadership presenter to be determined, this class teaches students 
how to recognize bullying, prevent bullying and how to help someone else who is being 
bullied.  

Fitness presented by Logan County Health Department, is an active workshop of fun 
filled games showing the students just how much fun and how easy it is to be physically 
active. 

Social Media Use presented by Officer Anthony Gibbs of the Guthrie Police 
Department. This class teaches students the dangers associated with social media and 
how to minimize the risks involved with social media. 

Drug Intervention presented by John Talley, FCA Regional Director. This class will 
discuss the substances that are considered “DRUGS” in the school environment, the 
effects on the body and how to deal with the pressures driving students to use drugs.  

Tobacco Stops With Me presented by Logan County Health Department, is 
focusing on the negative health effects that tobacco and secondhand smoke has 
on the body. 
Logan County Health Department presenters are Carissa Redman, Courtney 
McLemore, Nikkiey Morton. 
If you have any questions or concerns please feel free to call me at 282-5936. I 
appreciate your continued support. 

Respectfully, 

Bethany Knight, M.Ed. GJHS Counselor 

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 1 of 8 
 
 

      
ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

 
The district participates in a variety of federal programs and receives funding (“Awards”) through those 
programs.  All district representatives will comply with all regulatory guidance and laws applicable to the 
individual programs. 
 
The district will regularly monitor its compliance efforts and make appropriate information available to the 
federal awarding agency (“FAA”), state pass-through entity (“State Entity”), inspectors general, and/or US 
comptroller.  The district will make required performance reports using OMB approved information 
collections reports. 
 
 
Audits 

 
If the district expends $750,000 or more in federal awards during the fiscal year, it will have an 
audit conducted. 
 

 
Employee Compensation 
 

Regardless of the source of the funds, employees are paid pursuant to the district’s salary schedule 
for all work performed.  If personnel costs are paid with Awards, those costs will be calculated as 
wages and fringe benefits permitted in 2 C.F.R. § 200.431 for services rendered during the relevant 
time period.   
 
Employees who are paid with Award funds – in whole or in part - must maintain adequate records 
documenting the time spent performing each set of duties so that their compensation can be 
correctly allocated to the Award.  2 C.F.R. § 200.430 
 
 

Travel and Conference Expenses 
 

The district will follow its standard travel reimbursement and professional development policies 
and procedures when spending Award funds, except when a federal requirement is more stringent, 
in which case the district will adhere to the more stringent requirement.  Any travel, conference / 
professional development participation and expenses will be reasonable, necessary, and related to 
the federal program tied to the Award. 
 
 

Conflict of Interest / Mandatory Disclosure Regarding Contracting 
  

The district will make written disclosure of any potential conflict of interest to the FAA or State 
Entity in accordance with the FAA’s policy. 
 
All members of the board are expected to maintain high ethical standards and use good judgment 
in conducting school business.  Members are also required to follow the same standards of 

110



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 2 of 8 
 
 

professional conduct required of all district employees.  Board members specifically agree to 
refrain from using their position for any unfair personal or business advantage or engaging in any 
action which gives the appearance of such misconduct.  Any board member who violates this policy 
will be referred to the Oklahoma State Ethics Commission. 
 
Business Arrangements and Financial Transactions  
 
All board members are required to familiarize themselves with and comply with all the 
requirements of OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 5-124.   
 
As required by law, the district will not contract with any member of the board or any company, 
individual or business concern in which any member of the board is directly or indirectly 
interested.  A member of the board is considered to be interested in any contract with a company, 
individual or business concern if the member of the board or any member of the immediate family 
(including a partner) of the member of the board owns any substantial interest in the same, or if an 
organization employs or is about to employ one of these parties.  The only exceptions will be those 
allowed by OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 5-124.  
 
If a contract is allowed by an exception listed in OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 5-124, then the board will 
not give special consideration to any company based on its affiliation with a board member or a 
board member’s family or partner.  If the board is seeking to conduct business with a company 
affiliated with a board member (or a board member’s family member or partner) that member will 
abstain from the contracting process unless a statutory exception applies.   
 
Gifts 
 
Board members may not seek or accept gifts, payments, services, entertainment, travel, valuable 
privileges, etc. from individuals or vendors who do business or seek to do business with the district, 
although board members may accept common courtesies such as meals and promotional items as 
are customarily exchanged in the normal course of business.  These courtesies must be of nominal 
value only.  Board members are expected to use good judgment in accepting such courtesies and 
must avoid any conflict of interest or even the appearance of impropriety. 
 
Reporting Misconduct 
 
In the event a board member engages in misconduct such as fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations, 
the board president, or the vice president if the president is the board member engaging in the 
misconduct, will report the violation to the FAA or State Entity in order to help prevent or prosecute 
waste, fraud, and abuse.   
 

  
Financial Management Procedures 
 

Internal Controls 
 
The Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is responsible for implementing appropriate 
internal controls over Award funds which are consistent with 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Subpart E.  This 

111



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 3 of 8 
 
 

includes, but is not limited to, reviewing and comparing Awards, budgets, and allocations to 
determine whether the Awards are being expended appropriately and in compliance with relevant 
guidelines. The Director of Federal Programs is responsible for taking prompt action if 
noncompliance is discovered.  The Director of Federal Programs is also required to take reasonable 
measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and protected information. 
 
General Recordkeeping 
 
The district will expend all Awards and account for those Awards in accordance with all applicable 
laws and regulations.  The Director of Federal Programs is responsible for maintaining appropriate 
records, documentation, and oversight related to all Awards.  This includes, but is not limited to 
the following: 
 

 information to prepare all required reports 
 
 compliance documentation to establish conformity with federal statutes, 

regulations, and the specific terms and conditions of an Award 
 
 proof of the appropriate expenditure of Awards 
 
 records of receipt / expenditure of Awards, including the federal program under 

which the Award was made, any applicable CFDA number, Award identification 
number and year, name of the FAA, and name of any applicable State Entity 

 
 accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of all Awards in 

accordance with current OMB standards and the terms of the Award 
 
 source documents showing the application for funds, authorizations, obligations, 

unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, and income and interest related to an 
Award 

 
 evidence that all Award funds, property, and other assets have been safeguarded 

and are used solely for authorized purposes   
 
 a comparison of Award expenditures and budgets  
 
 the district’s written procedures to minimize the elapsed time between the transfer 

of funds and disbursement by the district, when possible, to receive funds in 
advance from the FAA   

 
 the district’s written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in 

accordance with 2 CFR part 200 subpart E and the terms and conditions of the 
Award 

 
 
 
 

112



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 4 of 8 
 
 

Records Retention Timeline 
 

The district will maintain all records pertinent to any Awards it receives.  All documents 
will be maintained a minimum of 3 years from the date of submission of the final 
expenditure report OR 3 years from the date of the quarterly or annual financial report 
UNLESS there are pending claims related to project OR the FAA has notified the district 
the records should be maintained longer OR the records have been transferred to or are 
maintained by the FAA or State Entity.  The district will retain records for real property 
and equipment maintained for 3 years after final disposition.   
  

Interest  
 
The District Treasurer is responsible for maintaining advance Award payments in an interest 
bearing account unless: 
 

 the district receives less than $120,000 in Awards per year 
 the district would earn less than $500 per year in interest on federal cash balances 
 the depository would require an unfeasible minimum balance 
 the banking system prohibits interest bearing accounts 

 
The Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is responsible for retaining up to $500 per 
year of interest earned on Awards for the district to utilize for administrative expenses.  The 
Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is responsible for remitting any additional earned 
interest to the Department of Health and Human Services Payment Management System. 
 
Budgeting 
 
The Director of Federal Programs is responsible for regularly reviewing budgets and expenses and 
making appropriate reports and requests for deviations in the budget or project scope. 
 
Real Property, Equipment, and Supplies 
 
The district will appropriately insure all real property, equipment, and supplies (“Property”) 
acquired or improved with Awards, and will take reasonable steps to safeguard and adequately 
maintain the Property.  All Property will be labeled.   
 
The district will not encumber Property acquired or improved with an Award without prior approval 
from the FAA. 
 
The district will maintain appropriate records of the Property. These records will include, as 
applicable, a description, serial/identification number, source of funding (including the Federal 
Award Identification Number), name of title holder, acquisition date, cost, percentage of federal 
participation in the project’s cost, location, use and condition, disposition data (including date of 
disposal and sale price). 
 

113



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 5 of 8 
 
 

The district will conduct an inventory of Property at least every 2 years, and will review/update the 
inventory annually.  The district will include the following information on the inventory: fund 
source, description, serial number, acquisition date, acquisition cost, and location. 
 
The district will use the Property as long as needed, and may make the Property available for other 
federal projects as long as this will not disrupt the intended use. 
 
Once the Property is no longer needed, it will be disposed of in accordance with current federal 
standards.   
 
Property purchased for a Title I, Part A Targeted Assistance program will be reserved only for 
identified students.   

 
 
General Procurement Standards and Vendor Selection 
 

General Standards 
 
The district will follow its standard procurement policies and procedures when spending Award 
funds, except when a federal requirement is more stringent, in which case the district will adhere 
to the more stringent requirement.  The Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is 
responsible for overseeing that contractors perform in accordance with the terms of their contracts 
/ purchase orders. 
 
Any employee who has oversight or compliance responsibilities for administering an Award will 
comply with the district’s stated conflict of interest policy above. 
 
The district will use processes and analysis designed to avoid acquiring unnecessary and duplicative 
items and will actively attempt to make economical purchases with Award funds.  This may 
include, when appropriate, consideration of leases, shared service agreements, use of federal excess 
and surplus property, and value engineering clauses in construction contracts. 
 
The district will only award contracts to responsible contractors possessing the ability to 
successfully perform.  In determining whether a contractor is a responsible contractor, the district 
will consider integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial 
and technical resources. 
 
The district will maintain adequate records detailing the history of procurement, including the 
rationale for the procurement method, selection of the contract type, contractor selection or 
rejection, and the basis for the contract price for all Awards. 
 
In procurement with Awards, the district will only use time and material type contracts after 
determining that no other contract is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the 
contractor exceeds at its own risk.  If such a contract is used, the district will utilize extra oversight 
on the project. 
 

114



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 6 of 8 
 
 

The district will utilize good practices and sound business judgment to settle all procurement issues 
related to Awards, including source evaluations, protests, disputes, and claims. 
 
Procurement Methods 
 
For procurement processes with Award funds, the district will make technical specifications on 
proposed procurements available to the FAA or State Entity if requested.   
 
All contracts connected with an Award will comply with 2 C.F.R. §200.326. 
 
For all procurements using funds from an Award, the district will utilize one of the procurement 
methods identified below: 
 
 Micro-purchase will be utilized for purchases under $3,500 (or $2,000 if the purchase is 

subject to the Davis-Bacon Act).  The district will attempt to distribute these purchases 
equitably among qualified suppliers, and the district will not solicit competitive quotations 
if the district believes a purchase price is reasonable.   

 
 Small purchase procedures will be utilized for purchases under the Simplified Acquisition 

Threshold ($150,000).  When utilizing this procurement method the district will obtain 
quotes from an adequate number of qualified sources. 

 
 Sealed bids will be utilized when complete, adequate, and realistic specifications are 

available, multiple bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the business and 
the procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price and the successful bidder can be made 
principally on the basis of price.  When utilizing this procurement method, the district will 
timely and publicly issue the invitation for bids - including adequate information about the 
project.  All the bids will be publicly opened as prescribed in the invitation for bids, and 
the contract will be awarded in writing to the lowest responsible bidder.  If a sealed bid is 
rejected, the district will document the reason for the rejection. 

 
 Competitive proposals will be utilized when other procurement methods are not 

appropriate.  The first step of the competitive proposal process is getting an independent 
estimate.  When utilizing this procurement method, the district will publicize the evaluation 
factors and their relative importance to an adequate number of qualified sources and will 
consider all responses.  The district will use an established, written method for conducting 
technical evaluations of the proposals (including receiving independent estimates before 
receiving bids or proposals) and award the project to the proposal which is most 
advantageous to the district.   

 
 The district may also use competitive proposals for qualifications-based procurement of 

architectural/engineering (A/E) services to award proposals to the most qualified 
competitor – subject to fair and reasonable compensation.  The district will not use this 
type of procurement to purchase other types of services through A/E firms. 

 
 Noncompetitive proposals will be utilized when an item is only available from a single 

source, there is an urgent situation which precludes the delays associated with competitive 

115



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 7 of 8 
 
 

selection, the FAA or State Entity has expressly authorized this method, or solicitation 
from multiple sources has yielded inadequate competition.   

 
 Negotiating Profit will be negotiated as a separate element of the price for each contract if 

there is no price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed.   
 
 For all procurements using funds from an Award, the district: 
 

 will not utilize a cost plus a percentage of cost or percentage of construction cost method 
of contracting 

 
 will not accept bids or proposals from a contractor that develops or drafts specifications, 

requirements, statements of work, invitations for bids, or similar documents 
 
 will not unnecessarily restrict bidders to a specific geographic area 
 
 will ensure that if a list of prequalified persons, firms or products are used, that the list is 

current and includes enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free 
competition   

 
 will take appropriate affirmative steps to ensure that small and minority businesses, 

women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms (“target groups”) are included 
in its contracting process, including: 

 
 including target groups on the solicitation list and ensure that these target groups 

are solicited whenever they are potential sources 
 
 dividing total requirements, if economically feasible, to permit maximum 

participation by target groups 
 
 establishing delivery schedules, when possible, which encourage target groups to 

participate 
 
 utilizing groups which interface with the target groups (e.g., Small Business 

Administration, Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce, etc.) 

 
 requiring the prime contractor, if using subcontracts, to take these same affirmative 

steps to include target groups 
 
 ensuring the district and all its contractors comply with the with § 6002 of the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act, including procuring only items which contain the highest 
percentage of recovered materials practicable for purchases over $10,000, 
procuring solid waste management services which maximize energy and resource 
recovery, and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procuring 
recovered materials identified in EPA guidelines. 

 

116



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

       
 

 
Adoption Date: 04-11-16  Revision Date(s):    10-8-18                                                                Page 8 of 8 
 
 

Suspension and Debarment 
 
The following language shall be included within the terms of any contract for goods and services 
that will be paid for using federal funding: 
 
 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Ineligibility 
 

To the best of its knowledge and belief, the contractor or any of its principals are not 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment or otherwise declared ineligible for 
the award of contracts by any Federal agency by the inclusion of the contractor or its 
principals in the current “LIST OF PARTIES EXCLUDED FROM FEDERAL 
PROCUREMENT OR NONPROCUREMENT PROGRAMS” published by the U.S. 
General Services Administration Office of Acquisition Policy. 

 
The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the District if at 
any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.  Should the prospective 
lower tier participant enter into a covered transaction with another person at the next lower tier, the 
prospective lower tier participant agrees by accepting this agreement that it will verify that the 
person it intends to do business with is not excluded or disqualified. 
 

 

117



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              D-21 
         
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s): 09-14-2009, 11-11-2013, 10-8-18                          Page 1 of 5 
                   

          
FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE 

 
It is the policy of the Guthrie School District to comply fully with the requirements of the Family and Medical 
Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA) and all its related revisions, including the National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA), 
collectively referred to in this policy as “FMLA.”  The district is a covered employer and, accordingly, will provide 
up to 12 workweeks of unpaid leave to eligible employees.  This leave must run concurrently with any paid leave the 
eligible employee has available.  Eligible employees may also be entitled to 14 additional weeks of leave (26 weeks 
total) for servicemember family leave.   
 
Any employee utilizing FMLA leave is required to cooperate in matters of scheduling, providing prompt notice of the 
need to use leave and availability for return to work, completing paperwork, etc. 
 
This policy is not intended to create any leave obligations for the district in addition to those provided under the 
FMLA.  In the event any conflict exists between this policy and the FMLA, the FMLA will be the final authority. 
 
Definitions 
 
▪ “Eligible employees” are those employees who:   

 
▪ have been employed for at least one year by the district; and 
 
▪ worked at least 1,250 hours during the previous 12 month period; and  
 
▪ have requested leave for a reason covered by the FMLA; and 
 
▪ there are at least 50 employees within a 75 mile radius.   
 
Full-time instructional employees are deemed to have met the 1,250 hours of employment requirement if 
they worked full time during the prior year. 
 

▪ A “child” means a biological, adopted, foster or step child, a legal ward, an individual with an in loco parentis 
relationship with the employee or military member, and adult children who are physically or mentally 
incapable of self-care. 

 
▪ A “serious health condition” is one which requires either in-patient care or continuing treatment by a health 

care provider.  This includes conditions or illnesses affecting health to the extent that in-patient care is 
required, or absences are necessary on a recurring basis or for more than just a few days.  A "serious health 
condition" does not include short-term conditions for which treatment and recovery are very brief as such 
conditions would normally be covered by the district’s sick leave policies.   

 
▪ A “year” means a rolling 12-month period measured backward from the date an employee uses any leave. 
 
▪ A “workweek” means 5 business days. 
 
▪ A “covered military member” (for purposes of active duty leave) is an individual serving in the Regular 

Armed Forces or the National Guard and Reserves and who has been called to active duty.  Veterans receiving 
treatment or therapy, or those who are recuperating and were discharged or released for any reason other than 
dishonorable discharge within the 5 years preceding the employee’s request for leave are also included in 
this definition. 

 

118



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              D-21 
         
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s): 09-14-2009, 11-11-2013, 10-8-18                          Page 2 of 5 
                   

▪ A “covered military member” (for purposes of servicemember family leave) is an individual serving in the 
Regular Armed Forces or the National Guard and Reserves who is undergoing treatment or therapy for a 
serious injury or illness incurred or exacerbated while on active duty. 

 
▪ A “serious injury or illness” is an injury or illness incurred (or exacerbated) by the servicemember in the line 

of duty in the Armed Forces or National Guard and Reserves which: 
 
▪ may render the member medically unfit to perform the duties of the member’s office, grade, rank, 

or rating; or  
 
▪ resulted in the member receiving a VA Service Related Disability Rating of 50% or more; or 
 
▪ substantially impairs the veterans’ ability to be gainful employed; or 
 
▪ resulted in the member’s enrollment in the Department of Veterans Affairs Program of 

Comprehensive Assistance for Family Caregivers. 
 
 
Reasons for Leave 
 
All eligible employees who meet FMLA requirements may be granted leave as provided in this policy and required 
by law for the following reasons: 
 
1. for the birth of a child and to care for such child, or placement for adoption or foster care of a child; 

 
• If both parents are employed by the district, the combined amount of FMLA leave cannot exceed 12 

workweeks 
 
2. to care for a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition; 
 
3. for a serious health condition of the employee that makes the employee unable to perform his or her job 
 functions; 
 
4. for covered active duty leave with one or more of the following exigencies: 

• Short-notice deployment: employees can take up to 7 calendar days leave to address issues that 
arise from servicemembers’ call or order to active duty seven calendar days or less prior to the date of 
deployment; 

 
• Military events and related activities:  employees can take leave to attend official ceremonies, programs, 

or events sponsored by the military that are related to servicemembers’ active duty or call to active duty 
or attend family support or assistance programs and informational briefings sponsored or promoted by 
the military, military service organizations, or the American Red Cross that are related to 
servicemembers’ active duty or call to active duty; 

 
• Childcare and school activities:  employees can take leave to arrange alternative childcare, provide 

childcare on an urgent, immediate need (but not everyday) basis, enroll in or transfer a child to a new 
school or day care facility, or attend meetings with school or day care staff (such as parent-teacher 
conferences) due to servicemembers’ active duty or call to active duty;  

 
• Financial and legal arrangements: employees can take leave to make or update financial or legal 

arrangements to address servicemembers’ absence while on active duty or call to active duty, such as 
executing powers of attorney, transferring bank account signature authority, enrolling in the Defense 
Enrollment Eligibility Reporting System,  or obtaining military identification cards and to act as the 

119



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              D-21 
         
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s): 09-14-2009, 11-11-2013, 10-8-18                          Page 3 of 5 
                   

servicemembers’ representative before governmental agencies to obtain, arrange, or appeal military 
service benefits while servicemembers are on active duty or called to active duty and for 90 days 
following termination of active duty status;  

 
• Counseling: employees can take leave to attend counseling that is provided by someone other than a 

healthcare provider for servicemembers or their children for needs arising from servicemembers’ active 
duty or call to active duty; 

 
• Rest and recuperation: employees can take up to 15 days leave to spend time with servicemembers on 

short-term, temporary rest and recuperation leave during a period of deployment; 
 
• Post-deployment activities: employees can take leave to attend arrival ceremonies, reintegration 

briefings and events and other official ceremony or program sponsored by the military that occurs within 
90 days following termination of servicemembers’ active duty status or to address issues arising from 
servicemembers’ death while on active duty, including meeting and recovering the body and making 
funeral arrangements; and 

 
• Additional activities: employees can take leave to address any other events that arise from 

servicemembers’ active duty or call to active duty when the district and employee agree that such leave 
qualifies as an exigency and agree upon the timing and duration of the leave. 

  
5. for servicemember family caregiver leave, provided that the leave (when combined with other forms of 
 FMLA leave) does not exceed 26 workweeks during a 12-month period; 
 
6. for parental care leave to care for (including making arrangements for care, patient transfer and meetings 
 with staff at a care facility) a parent-in- law who is unable to care for him/herself while the servicemember 
 is on active duty. 
 
Application For Leave 
 
Employees who wish to utilize FMLA leave must submit an application for leave (with all required supporting 
documentation) on the forms available through the superintendent’s office (the district will utilize all required forms 
as provided by the US Department of Labor.  The forms are available at 
http://www.dol.gov/whd/fmla/index.htm#Forms).  The district requests that, when practical, FMLA requests be 
submitted at least 30 days prior to the use of the leave.  In emergency circumstances, the district may provisionally 
place an employee on FMLA leave if conditions appear to warrant such action.  The employee is ultimately 
responsible for completing the necessary paperwork to finalize the use of FMLA leave at least 15 days in advance. 
 
Medical Documentation (for Leave Related to a Serious Medical Condition) 
 
In addition to all medical documentation required pursuant to the FMLA, the district may, in its sole discretion and at 
its own expense, require a second opinion related to the need for FMLA leave.  If the first and second opinions differ 
regarding the need for FMLA leave, the district and the employee shall mutually agree upon a provider to conduct a 
third opinion of the employee’s need for leave.  The cost of this third opinion will be paid for by the employer.    
 
The district may also require supplemental certifications of the employee’s continuing need for leave.  These 
certifications may not be more than one time per month unless the employee requests an extension of leave, changes 
circumstances regarding the illness or injury, or the district receives information that casts doubt on the validity of an 
existing certification.   
 
In the event an employee wishes to request an extension of leave, such request must be promptly submitted to 
his/her supervisor with supporting documentation from the health care provider regarding the reason for the 

120



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              D-21 
         
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s): 09-14-2009, 11-11-2013, 10-8-18                          Page 4 of 5 
                   

extension.  The extension is only available as long as the employee does not exceed the maximum leave permitted 
by the FMLA.  
 
Right to Conduct Surveillance  
 
In an effort to combat misuse of leave permitted by the FMLA, an employee may be surveilled to determine if the 
employee is not using the FMLA leave for the purpose for which it was granted.  The district may conduct non-
workplace (off-site) surveillance of an employee based on an honest belief or suspicion that the employee is misusing 
the FMLA leave granted.  If the employee is found to be misusing the FMLA leave, the employee will be subject to 
all disciplinary action allowed by law, including but not limited to dismissal or nonrenewal.  Circumstances which 
may give rise to an honest belief or suspicion of FMLA leave misuse include, but are not limited to, an employee 
providing inconsistent reasons for the FMLA leave, an employee engaging in a suspicious pattern of absences over a 
short period of time, verifiable information from co-workers evidencing misuse by an employee and significant 
changes in the frequency or duration of an employee’s absences. 
 
Intermittent Leave Or Leave On A Reduced Leave Schedule 
 
Eligible employees may request to use their available leave on an intermittent basis by following the same application 
and certification process as described above and under the following conditions: 
 

▪ intermittent leave in connection with the arrival of a new child must be approved by the district;    
 
▪ employees must coordinate the intermittent leave with their supervisor to attempt to reduce the 

negative impact of the leave on school operations; 
 
▪ the district reserves the right to transfer the employee to a position better suited to intermittent leave;   
 
▪ if an instructional employee will be absent more than 20% of the total working days in the period in 

which the leave will be used, the district may require the employee to either: 
 

▪ take leave for a "particular duration" or time which is not greater than the duration of the 
planned treatment, or  

 
▪ be transferred to an alternative position.   

 
 
Leave Taken Near The End Of An Academic Term 
 
If an instructional employee begins any type of covered leave more than 5 weeks before the end of a semester, and if 
the leave will last at least 3 weeks and the employee would otherwise return to work during the 3 weeks before the 
end of the term, the School District may require the employee to continue taking leave until the end of the semester.   
 
If an instructional employee takes leave (for a reason other than the employee's own serious health condition) which 
begins during the last 3 weeks of the semester, and if the leave will last more than 5 working days, the School 
District may require the employee to take leave until the end of the semester.  
 
If an instructional employee takes leave (for a reason other than the employee's own serious health condition) which 
begins during the last 3 weeks of the semester, and if the leave will last more than 5 working days, the School 
District may require the employee to take leave until the end of the semester.   
 
 
The Effect Of Leave On Benefits 
 

121



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              D-21 
         
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s): 09-14-2009, 11-11-2013, 10-8-18                          Page 5 of 5 
                   

During a period of FMLA leave, an employee will be retained on the School District's medical insurance plan under 
the same conditions that applied before leave began, including making any payments the employee previously made.    
An employee’s failure to timely pay his/her share of the medical premium may result in loss of coverage.  The 
employee is required to pay all of the premiums for any other type of insurance coverage which may exist. 
 
If the employee fails to return to work after the expiration of the leave, the employee will be required to reimburse 
the School District for payment of health insurance premiums during the FMLA leave, unless the reason for the 
failure to return to work are due to circumstances beyond the employee’s control.   
 
Employees do not accrue or lose any seniority or employment benefits during a period of FMLA leave. 
 
 
Return to Work  
 
Employees must update their supervisor regarding the intent to return to work, including providing all necessary 
releases and paperwork, at least 5 business days in advance of the expected return date.   
 
Although the district cannot guarantee that an employee will be returned to his/her original position, employees will 
generally be restored to an equivalent position and employment conditions upon return from FMLA leave.  Highly 
compensated employees are those individuals who are salaried and are among the highest paid 10% of the employees 
employed within 75 miles of the employee’s worksite.  A highly compensated employee may not be returned to work 
if it is necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to the operations of the district.  The district will 
make all determinations regarding job duties upon an employee’s return from FMLA leave. 
 
 
Failure To Return From Leave 
 
Employees who fail to return to work when scheduled (absent an approved extension) are subject to immediate 
termination for cause, subject to applicable due process hearing rights. 
 
 

122



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 1 of 11 
 

 
ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICINE TO STUDENTS 

 
 
Under Oklahoma law, a school nurse, an administrator or a designated school employee may administer prescription 
and nonprescription medications to students. 
 
For purposes of this policy, "medicine" or “medications” includes prescription medications and over-the-counter 
medicines such as but not limited to aspirin, cough syrup, and medicated ointments and any other item used to treat 
an illness, disease or malady. 
 
The term “legal custodian” means a parent, a court appointed guardian or a person having legal custody. 
 
Except as provide below, students may not retain possession of or self-administer any medicine.  Violation of this 
rule will be reported to the student's parents and may result in discipline including suspension. 
 
Medicine shall not be administered to students by teachers or administrators except pursuant to the provisions of this 
policy. 
 
Only designated employees who have successfully completed specific training in the administration of 
nonprescription and prescription medications may administer such medications. 
 
As further set out below, the District retains the discretion to reject requests for the administration of medication and 
to discontinue the administration of medication. 
 
A student who has a legitimate health need for a medicine shall deliver the medicine to the school nurse or school 
administrator in its original container with the written authorization of the student's parent or guardian for 
administration of the medicine.  The parent's authorization must identify the student, the medicine, and include or 
refer to the label for instructions on administration of the medicine.  The medicine will be administered to the 
student only by the school nurse, an administrator or a designated employee pursuant to the parent's instructions and 
the directions for use on the label or in the physician's prescription.  A new authorization form must be completed 
for each change of medication.  If there are no changes, the authorization must be renewed yearly.  If a student 
brings medications to school without a properly completed authorization form the school will inform the student’s 
legal custodian of district policy and the inability to give the medication.  The student’s legal custodian may, 
however, come to the school and dispense the medication to the student.  When medication is completed and/or at 
the end of the school year the authorization form will be placed in the student’s health folder and will be deemed 
part of the student’s health record.  Forms for parental authorization of administration of medicines are available in 
the office of the principal. 
 
The administration of each school shall keep a record of the students to whom medicine is administered, the date of 
administration, the person who administered the medicine, and the name or type of medicine administered. 
 
Medications must be stored in a separate locked drawer and not readily accessible to persons other than the persons 
who will administer the medication.  Medications requiring refrigeration will be refrigerated in a secure area.   
 
Any person administering medicine to a student will be annually trained by October 1 of each year by a school nurse 
to administer medication.  Only those successfully completing the training will be authorized to give medication.  A 
current list of those authorized to give medication will be kept at each school and by the school nurse.  
 
Training will include:  review of state statutes and school regulations (including this policy) regarding 
administration of medication by school personnel, procedures for administration, documentation, handling and 

123



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 2 of 11 
 

storage of medication, medication needs of specific students, desired effects, potential side effects, adverse reactions 
and other observations. 
 
Students who are able to self-administer specific medications (inhalers, etc.) may do so provided such medication 
and special equipment are transported and maintained under the student’s control within all of the following 
guidelines: 
 
A licensed physician or dentist provides a written order that the student has a particular medical condition (asthma, 
etc.), is capable of and has been instructed in the proper method of, self-administration of medication.  It is the 
student’s legal custodian’s responsibility to contact the physician and have the physician complete and sign the 
required order. 
 
There is a written legal custodian authorization for self-administration of medication. 
 
Parents and guardians who elect to have the student self-medicate are accepting that the District, its agents and 
employees shall incur no liability for any adverse reaction or injury suffered by the student as a result of the self-
administration of medication and/or using the specialized equipment. 
 
The written authorization will terminate at the end of the school year and must be renewed annually. 
 
If the legal custodian and physician authorize self-medication, the District is not responsible for safeguarding the 
students’ medications or specialized equipment such as asthma inhalers. 
 
Students who self-medicate are prohibited from sharing or playing with their medication, special equipment, i.e., 
inhalers, etc.  If a student engages in these activities the legal custodian will be contacted and a conference will be 
scheduled with the legal custodian, student, nurse and other appropriate persons. 
 
Students will not be allowed to self-administer: 
 
a. narcotics 
 
b. prescription pain killers 
 
c. ritalin  
 
d. other medication hereafter designated in writing by the District. 
 
Students may self-administer injectables only in the school office in the presence of authorized school personnel. 
 
The District strongly recommends that students who must self-medicate should wear Medic Alert bracelets or 
necklaces. 
 
The legal custodian will provide any emergency supply of their student’s inhaled asthma medication to be 
administered by school personnel according to state law. 
 
Nonprescription medication will only be administered by school staff with written authorization of the student’s 
legal custodian and written instructions from the student’s physician.  The nonprescription medication will be 
administered according to written instructions from the student’s physician.  The medication must be in the original 
container that indicates: 
 
a. student name (affixed to the container) 
 
b. ingredients 

124



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 3 of 11 
 

 
c. expiration date 
 
d. dosage and frequency 
 
e. administration route, i.e., oral, drops, etc. 
 
f. other directions as appropriate 
 
It is the responsibility of the legal custodian to maintain the supply. 
 
Prescription medication will only be administered by school staff with written authorization of the student’s legal 
custodian and written instructions from the student’s physician.  Prescription medication must be in original 
container that indicates: 
 
a. student name  
 
b. name and strength of medication and expiration date 
 
c. dosage and directions for administrations 
 
d. name of the licensed physician or dentist 
 
e. date, name, address and phone number of the pharmacy 
 
It is the responsibility of the legal custodian to maintain the supply. 
 
Any medication that is not reclaimed by the legal custodian by the last official day of school closing or reclaimed 
within seven days of being discontinued by the prescribing physician will be destroyed by the designated employee 
or the school nurse in the presence of a witness according to the following procedures: 
 
Medication will be destroyed in a non-recoverable fashion. 
 
a. Liquid medication will be poured into a sink or toilet. 
 
b. Pills or tablets will be poured into toilet. 
 
The following information will be charted on the student’s health card and signed by the designated employee and a 
witness: 
 
a. Date of destruction 
 
b. Time of destruction 
 
c. Name and quantity of medication destroyed 
 
d. Manner of destruction of medication 
 
 
Any and all controlled substances will be destroyed according to state law. 
 
 

125



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 4 of 11 
 

The designated employee will advise the principal and school nurse if discontinuance of medication is appropriate 
and assist in informing the legal custodian before mailing a discontinuance letter.  Legitimate reasons for 
discontinuing administration of medication would include but not be limited to: 
 
• a legitimate lack of space or facility to adequately store specific medication; 
 
• lack of cooperation by the student, parent or guardian and/or prescribing doctor and the District; 
 
• an unexpected and/or adverse medical reaction to the medication at school, i.e., mood change, allergic 

reaction, etc., considered to be deleterious to the health and well-being of the student; 
 
• any apparent change in the medication’s appearance, odor, or other characteristics that question the quality 

of the medication; and 
 
• the medication expiration date has passed. 
 
 

126



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 5 of 11 
 

PARENTAL AUTHORIZATION TO ADMINISTER MEDICINE 
 
TO:                                                           

(Administrator) 
 

                                                          
(School) 

 
I am the parent, guardian or legal custodian with legal custody of                               , a minor 

student attending this school.  This student requires medication at intervals during the school day. 
 

I hereby give my consent and authorize the school nurse, the principal, or                      (an 
employee of the School District designated by the school nurse, the principal, and me) to administer: 
 
                                (name of drug), a non-prescription medication which I am hereby supplying 

you, in accordance with the written instructions of the student’s physician which are 
attached hereto. 

 
                                (name of drug), a filled prescription medication which I am hereby 

supplying you, in accordance with the directions for the administration of the medicine 
listed on the label of the vial. 

 
                                (name of drug), a filled prescription medication which I am hereby 

supplying you, in accordance with the written instructions of the student’s physician 
prescribing the medicine, which is attached hereto. 

 
___  I hereby give my consent and authorize my child to self-medicate under the School 

District’s Policy on the Administration of Medicine to Students. 
 

I understand that under state law the Board of Education, the School District, or employees of the 
District shall not be liable to the student or the student's parent or guardian for civil damages for any 
personal injuries to the student which result from acts or omissions of school employees in administering 
the medicine I have hereby authorized.  I understand that the School District, its agents and employees shall 
incur no liability for any adverse reaction or injury suffered by the student as a result of the self-
administration of medication and/or using the specialized equipment. 
 

I agree to abide by all of the terms of the School District’s Policy on the Administration of Medicine 
to Students, a copy of which will be given to me on my request. 
 
        
Date   Signature 
 

    
(Print Name) 
Parent with Legal Custody or Guardian 

 
    
Address 

127



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 6 of 11 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this policy is to identify when district personnel are authorized to administer medication to 
students, when students are authorized to self-medicate and how district personnel will maintain, 
administer, monitor and dispose of student medication. 
 
Definitions 
 
For purposes of this policy, these terms have the following definitions: 

 
"Medicine" or “medications” includes prescription medications and over-the-counter medicines such as but 
not limited to aspirin, cough syrup, medicated ointments and any other item used to treat an illness, disease 
or malady. This term shall not include “Sunscreen” as defined below. 
 
“Parent” means a parent, a court appointed guardian or a person having legal custody. 
 
“Sunscreen” means a compound topically applied to prevent sunburn. 
 
Policy 
 
Under Oklahoma law, a school nurse, an administrator or a designated school employee may administer 
prescription and nonprescription medications and assist in applying sunscreen to students.  Only designated 
employees who have successfully completed specific training in the administration of nonprescription and 
prescription medications may administer medication to students with legitimate health needs. 
 
Except as provided in this policy and in the district’s Student Diabetes Care and Management policy, 
students may not retain possession of or self-administer any medicine.  Violation of this rule will be reported 
to the student's parent and may result in discipline, including out-of-school suspension. 
 
As further set out below, the district retains the discretion to reject requests for the administration of 
medication or application of sunscreen and to discontinue the administration of medication or application 
of sunscreen. 
 
The parent must deliver the student’s medicine to the school nurse or school administrator in its original 
container with the parent’s written authorization for administration of the medicine. Sunscreen for 
application by a school nurse must be delivered to the school nurse or school administrator in its original 
container with the parent’s written authorization for application of sunscreen. The parent's authorization for 
either administration of medicine or application of sunscreen must identify the student, the medicine or 
sunscreen, and include or refer to the label for instructions on administration of the medicine.  The school 
nurse, an administrator or a designated employee will administer the medicine to the student or assist the 
student in applying sunscreen pursuant to the parent's instructions and the directions for use on the label or 
in the physician's prescription.  The parent must complete a new authorization form annually and for each 
change of medication or sunscreen.  The district will maintain the authorization form as a part of the 
student’s health record.  Authorization forms will be available in the principal’s office.  A parent who 
chooses to do so may come to the school and personally dispense medication or apply sunscreen to the 
student.   
 

128



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 7 of 11 
 

The administration of each school will keep a record of the students to whom medicine is administered or 
sunscreen is applied, the date of administration or application, the person who administered the medicine 
or applied the sunscreen, and the name or type of medicine or sunscreen administered. 

 
Medications and sunscreen will be stored in a separate locked drawer or cabinet that is readily accessible 
only to the persons who will administer the medication or apply the sunscreen.  Medications requiring 
refrigeration will be refrigerated in a secure area.   
 
Any person administering medicine or applying sunscreen to a student will participate in training by 
October 1 of each year conducted by a school nurse or other health care professional.  The training will 
include: 

 
• Review of state statutes and school rules and regulations (including this policy) regarding 

administration of medication and application of sunscreen by school personnel; 
 
• Procedures for administration, documentation, handling and storage of medication; and 
 
• Medication needs of specific students, desired effects, potential side effects, adverse 

reactions and other observations. 
 

Only those persons who successfully complete the training are authorized to administer medication or apply 
sunscreen.  Each school site will maintain a current list of those authorized to administer medication and 
apply sunscreen at that site. 

 
Students who are able to self-administer specific medications, such as inhaled asthma medication or 
anaphylaxis medication, or use specialized equipment, such as an inhaler or Epinephrine injector, may do 
so provided such medication and specialized equipment are transported and maintained under the students’ 
control in compliance with the following rules: 
 

• A licensed physician or dentist must provide a written order that the student has a particular 
medical condition (asthma, anaphylaxis, etc.), is capable of and has been instructed in the 
proper method of self-administration of medication.  It is the parent’s responsibility to 
contact the physician and have the physician complete and return the required order. 

 
• The parent must provide a written authorization for self-administration of medication. 
 
• Parents who elect self-medication understand and agree that the district, its agents and 

employees shall incur no liability for any adverse reaction or injury the student suffers as 
a result of self-administration of medication and/or use of specialized equipment. 

 
• The written authorization will terminate at the end of the school year and must be renewed 

annually. 
 
• If the parent and physician authorize self-medication, the district is not responsible for 

safeguarding the students’ medications or specialized equipment. 
 
• Students who self-medicate are prohibited from sharing or playing with their medication 

or special equipment.  If a student engages in these activities the parent will be contacted 

129



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 8 of 11 
 

and a conference will be scheduled with the parent, student, nurse and other appropriate 
persons. 

 
• Students will not be allowed to self-administer: 

 
▪ Narcotics; 
 
▪ Prescription pain killers; 
 
▪ Medication used to treat ADD/ADHD or other psychological or behavior 

disorders; and 
 
▪ Other medication hereafter designated in writing by the district. 

 
• Except as otherwise provided by an individual student’s school health plan, students may 

self-administer non-diabetes and non-anaphylaxis-related injectables only in the school 
office in the presence of authorized school personnel.  Diabetes-related injectables will be 
administered in accordance with the district’s Management of Students with Diabetes 
policy. 

 
• Students who self-medicate are encouraged to wear Medic Alert bracelets or necklaces. 
 
• The parent will provide an emergency supply of a student’s inhaled asthma medication or 

anaphylaxis medication to be administered by school personnel, as required by state law. 
 

Students who are able to self-apply sunscreen may do so provided such sunscreen is regulated by the Food 
and Drug Administration. Students may self-apply sunscreen without the written authorization of a parent, 
legal guardian or physician. All students are permitted to possess sunscreen that is regulated by the Food 
and Drug Administration.  
 
Sunscreen 
 
School staff will only assist the student in applying sunscreen with the parent’s written authorization and 
according to label directions or, if applicable, written instructions from the student’s physician. The 
sunscreen must be in the original container indicating: 
 

• Ingredients; and 
 
• Directions for Application. 

 
Nonprescription Medication  
 
School staff will only administer nonprescription medication with the parent’s written authorization and 
according to label directions or written instructions from the student’s physician.  The medication must be 
in the original container that indicates: 
 

• Student name (affixed to the container); 
 

130



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 9 of 11 
 

• Ingredients; 
 
• Expiration date; 
 
• Dosage and frequency; 
 
• Administration route, i.e., oral, drops, etc.; and 
 
• Other directions as appropriate. 
 

School staff will only administer aspirin (acetylsalicylic acid) and products containing salicylic acid with 
written instructions from the student’s physician.  The parent must provide and maintain a supply of 
nonprescription medication for the student. 
 
Prescription Medication 
School staff will only administer prescription medication with written authorization and instructions.  
Prescription medication must be in the original container that indicates: 
 

• Student name; 
 
• Name and strength of medication and expiration date; 
 
• Dosage and directions for administration; 
 
• Name of the licensed physician or dentist; 
 
• Date, name, address and phone number of the pharmacy. 

 
The parent must provide and maintain the supply of prescription medication for the student. 
 
The parent must reclaim any remaining medication by the last official day of school closing or within seven 
days after the prescribing physician discontinues the medication.  The school nurse or designated employee 
will destroy in a nonrecoverable fashion in the presence of a witness any medication not timely reclaimed.  
The person who destroys the medication will record the following information: 
 

• Date of destruction; 
 

• Time of destruction; 
 

• Name and quantity of medication destroyed; and  
 

• Manner of destruction of medication 
 
Any and all controlled substances will be destroyed according to state law. 
 
The school nurse or designated employee will advise the principal or designee if discontinuance of 
medication to a student is appropriate and assist in informing the parent.  Legitimate reasons for 
discontinuing administration of medication include, but are not limited to the following: 

131



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 10 of 11 
 

 
• A legitimate lack of space or facility to adequately store specific medication; 
 
• Lack of cooperation by the student, parent and/or prescribing doctor and the district; 
 
• An unexpected and/or adverse medical reaction to the medication at school, i.e., mood 

change, allergic reaction, etc., considered to be harmful to the health and well-being of the 
student; 

 
• Any apparent change in the medication’s appearance, odor, or other characteristics that 

raise reasonable doubts about the quality of the medication; and 
 
• The medication expiration date has passed. 
 

 
Reference:  OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 1-116.2, 70 § 1-116.3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

132



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):  08-10-2009, 10-8-18                                           Page 11 of 11 
 

Guthrie Public Schools 
Parental Authorization to Administer Medicine or Assist with Application of Sunscreen 

 
TO:                                                                  
           (Administrator)      (School) 
 
I am the parent, guardian or legal custodian with legal custody of       
 , a minor student attending this school.   
 
 This student requires medication (not including sunscreen) at intervals during the school day. I hereby give 

my consent and authorize the school nurse, the principal, or        
(an employee of the School District designated by the school nurse, the principal, and me) to administer: 

 
     (name of drug), a non-prescription medication which I am hereby 

supplying you, in accordance with my written instructions or the written instructions of a physician 
which are attached hereto. 

 
     (name of drug), a filled prescription medication which I am hereby 

supplying you, in accordance with the directions for the administration of the medicine listed on the 
label of the vial. 

 
     (name of drug), a filled prescription medication which I am hereby 

supplying you, in accordance with the written instructions of the physician prescribing the medicine, 
which is attached hereto. 

 
 I hereby give my consent and authorize my child to self-medicate under the School District’s Policy 

on the Administration of Medicine to Students. 
 

 I desire that the school assist the student in applying sunscreen. I understand that the student may possess 
and self-apply sunscreen without my written authorization. I hereby give my consent and authorize the school 
nurse, the principal, or        (an employee of the School District 
designated by the school nurse, the principal, and me) to assist the student in applying sunscreen: 

 
 sunscreen, which I am hereby supplying you, in accordance with the label directions.  
 
 sunscreen, which I am hereby supplying you, in accordance with written instructions of the student’s 

physician which I have attached.  
 
I understand that under state law the Board of Education, the School District, or employees of the School District shall not be liable 
to the student or the student's parent or guardian for civil damages for any personal injuries to the student which result from acts or 
omissions of school employees in administering the medicine or assisting in the application of sunscreen I have hereby authorized.  
I understand that the School District, its agents and employees shall incur no liability for any adverse reaction or injury suffered by 
the student as a result of the self-administration of medication and/or using the specialized equipment. 
 
I agree to abide by all of the terms of the School District’s Policy on the Administration of Medicine to Students, a copy of which 
will be given to me on my request. 
 
              
Date       Signature 
 
              
Address      Parent with legal custody/guardian 

 

133



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 1 of 11 
      

 
 

CHILD ABUSE, NEGLECT, EXPLOITATION AND TRAFFICKING:   
REPORTING AND INVESTIGATION REVISED 

  
District employees have a legal obligation under Oklahoma law to report child abuse, neglect and exploitation to the 
Oklahoma Department of Human Services (DHS).  District employees are also obligated under Oklahoma law to 
report suspected child trafficking to the Oklahoma Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control (OBNDDC).  
In addition, district employees have an obligation to report suspected abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking 
affecting students to principals or other school officials to ensure the student’s safety and welfare while at school or 
participating in school activities.  Although there are no reporting requirements regarding students who are 18 or older, 
any employee who suspects that an adult student is being mistreated should notify the principal.  The purpose of this 
policy is to provide directives and guidelines to assist district employees in fulfilling their legal responsibility. 
 
Certain terms used in this policy have the following definitions: 
 
“Abuse and neglect" means harm or threatened harm through action or inaction to a child's health or welfare, including 
non-accidental physical pain or injury, or mental injury or safety, sexual abuse, sexual exploitation, or negligent 
treatment or maltreatment, including but not limited to the failure or omission to provide adequate food, clothing, 
shelter or medical care or protection from harm or threatened harm, by a person responsible for the child's health or 
welfare. 
 
A "person responsible for a child's health, safety or welfare" includes a parent, a legal guardian, a custodian, a foster 
parent, a person 18 years of age or older with whom the child's parent cohabitates or any other adult residing in the 
home of the child, an agent or employee of a public or private residential home, institution or facility, or an owner, 
operator or employee of a child care facility as defined by OKLA. STAT. tit. 10 § 402. 
 
“Sexual abuse" includes but is not limited to rape, incest and lewd or indecent acts or proposals, as defined by law.  
"Sexual exploitation" includes but is not limited to allowing, permitting or encouraging a child to engage in 
prostitution, as defined by law, or allowing, permitting, encouraging or engaging in the lewd, obscene or pornographic 
photographing, filming or depicting of a child in those acts as defined by state law. 
 
“Exploitation” means an unjust or improper use of the resources of a child for the profit or advantage, pecuniary or 
otherwise, of a person other than the child, through the use of undue influence, coercion, harassment, duress, 
deception, false representation or false pretenses. 
 
“Trafficking” is defined by the Oklahoma Statutes at OKLA. STAT. tit. 21 § 866. 
 
“Parent” refers to parents, guardians or others who have legal responsibilities for specific children. 
 
Reporting Suspected Child Abuse, Neglect Exploitation or Trafficking 
 
Any district employee having reasonable cause to believe that a student under the age of 18 years is suffering from 
abuse, neglect or exploitation shall immediately report this matter to DHS through the hotline designated for this 
purpose (1-800-522-3511).  Employees must report suspected child trafficking to OBNDDC at 1-800-522-8031.  The 
employee should then provide notice to the school principal or other school official that a report was made, the name 
of the child, circumstances surrounding the report and the confirmation number provided by the hotline representative.    
 
Neither the board of education nor any district employee will discharge or in any manner discriminate or retaliate 
against the person who in good faith provides such reports or information, testifies, or is about to testify in any 
proceeding involving child abuse, neglect, exploitation, or trafficking, provided that the person did not perpetrate or 
inflict the abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking. 
 

134



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 2 of 11 
      

After a report is made to DHS or OBNDDC via the hotline, the reporting party will prepare a written report which 
contains the confirmation number of the report, the date and time of the telephone contact, the name of the person to 
whom the district employee made the oral report, the names and addresses of the child, the parents, and any other 
responsible persons, the child's age, the nature and extent of injuries, any previous incidents, and any other helpful 
information.  A copy of this report will be furnished to the principal or, if the reporter believes the principal is not an 
appropriate individual, to the superintendent.   
 
Information Concerning Child Abuse, Neglect Or Exploitation 
 
In any instance in which the district receives a report from DHS regarding any confirmed report of sexual abuse or 
severe physical abuse concerning the child, the superintendent will forward to a subsequent school in which the child 
enrolls all confirmed reports of sexual abuse and severe physical abuse received from DHS, and the superintendent 
will notify DHS of the child's new school and address, if known. 
 
All information or documents generated or received by the district in regard to the matter are confidential and shall 
not be disclosed except to investigators of DHS, the district's attorneys, the district attorney's office, a subsequent 
district in which the child enrolls, a person designated to assist in the treatment of or with services provided to the 
child or other state or federal officials in connection with the performance of their official duties.  The information or 
documents shall be maintained and transmitted by the district in the same manner as special education records.  Such 
records shall be destroyed when the child reaches the age of 18. 
 
Investigating Child Abuse, Neglect Or Exploitation 

 
At the request of appropriately identified investigators of DHS, OBNDDC or the district attorney's office, the 
superintendent, principal or other school official shall permit the investigators access to a student about whom the 
agency received a report.  The interview will be arranged in a manner that minimizes embarrassment to the child.  The 
superintendent will not contact the parent, guardian or other person responsible for the child's health or welfare prior 
to or following the interview, unless permission for parent contact is provided by law enforcement authorities.  No 
district employee will be present during the interview.  However, a district employee may be present prior to the 
interview if the employee believes that his or her temporary presence will make the child more comfortable or if the 
representatives request the presence of a district employee during the interview. 
 
Reports to Principal or Other School Officials 
 
Suspected instances of child abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking, whether the result of circumstances at home, 
school or at other locations, affects the child while he or she is in the care and custody of the school.  Consequently, 
employees are required to report any suspicion of child abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking by any individual, 
whether the identity is known or unknown, to the principal or other school official.  This reporting obligation exists 
in all instances, including circumstances suggestive of this conduct at school or connected with school activities.  
Accordingly, this policy includes an obligation to notify the principal or other school official, if for any reason the 
employee has a reasonable belief that the principal should not be notified, in any instance involving suspected abuse, 
neglect, exploitation or trafficking of a student.  
 
Immunity for Good Faith Reports 
 
Oklahoma law provides that any district employee who in good faith and exercising due care makes a report to DHS 
or another appropriate law enforcement office, allows access to a child by persons authorized to investigate a report 
concerning the child or participates in any judicial proceeding resulting from a report, shall have immunity from any 
liability, civil or criminal, that might otherwise be incurred or imposed. 
 
Reference:  10A OKLA. STAT. §1-2-101 et seq. 
 
 

135



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 3 of 11 
      

CHILD ABUSE, NEGLECT, EXPLOITATION AND TRAFFICKING: 
REPORTING AND INVESTIGATION REVISED 

 
Introduction 
 
Under Oklahoma law, district employees have varying legal obligations to report abuse, neglect and exploitation.  In 
addition, district employees have an obligation to report suspected abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking affecting 
students to principals or other school officials to ensure the student’s safety and welfare while at school or participating 
in school activities.  The purpose of this policy is to provide directives and guidelines to assist district employees in 
fulfilling their legal responsibility. 
 
Definitions 
 
Certain terms used in this policy have the following definitions: 
 

1. “Abuse, neglect or exploitation" shall include, but is not limited to all of the following: 
a. “Abuse” is defined as: 

i. harm or threatened harm through action or inaction to a child's health, welfare (including non-
accidental physical pain or injury, or mental injury), or safety, sexual abuse, sexual exploitation, 
or negligent treatment or maltreatment, including but not limited to the failure or omission to 
provide adequate food, clothing, shelter or medical care or protection from harm or threatened 
harm, by a person responsible for the child's health or welfare. (10A OKLA. STAT. § 1-1-105); 

ii. willful or malicious harm or threatened harm or failure to protect from harm or threatened harm 
to the health, safety, or welfare of a child under eighteen (18) years of age by another, or the act 
of willfully or maliciously injuring, torturing or maiming a child under eighteen (18) years of age 
by another. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 843.5); or 

iii. the intentional infliction of physical pain, injury, or mental anguish or the deprivation of food, 
clothing, shelter, or medical care to an incapacitated person, partially incapacitated person, or a 
minor by a guardian or other person responsible for providing these services. (30 OKLA. STAT. § 
1-111). 

 
b. “Neglect” is defined as any of the following: 

i. the failure or omission to provide any of the following: 
1. adequate nurturance and affection, food, clothing, shelter, sanitation, hygiene, or 

appropriate education, 
2. medical, dental, or behavioral health care, 
3. supervision or appropriate caretakers, or 
4. special care made necessary by the physical or mental condition of the child, 

ii. the failure or omission to protect a child from exposure to any of the following: 
1. the use, possession, sale, or manufacture of illegal drugs, 
2. illegal activities, or 
3. sexual acts or materials that are not age-appropriate; 

iii. abandonment. (10A OKLA. STAT. § 1-1-105); or 
iv. the failure to provide protection, adequate shelter or clothing; or the harming or threatening with 

harm through action or inaction by either another individual or through the person's own action 
or inaction because of a lack of awareness, incompetence, or incapacity, which has resulted or 
may result in physical or mental injury. (30 OKLA. STAT. § 1-111).   

 
c. “Sexual abuse" is defined as behavior that includes but is not limited to rape, incest and lewd or indecent 

acts or proposals, made to a child, as defined by law, by a person responsible for the health, safety, or 
welfare of the child. (10A OKLA. STAT. § 1-1-105).   

 

136



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 4 of 11 
      

d. "Sexual exploitation" is defined as behavior that includes but is not limited to allowing, permitting, 
encouraging, or forcing a child to engage in prostitution, as defined by law, by any person eighteen (18) 
years of age or older or by a person responsible for the health, safety, or welfare of a child, or allowing, 
permitting, encouraging or engaging in the lewd, obscene or pornographic photographing, filming or 
depicting of a child in those acts by a person responsible for the health, safety, and welfare of the child 
(10A OKLA. STAT. § 1-1-105).  

 
e. “Contributing to the delinquency of a minor” is defined as behavior that knowingly or willfully causes, 

aids, abets or encourages a minor to be, to remain, or to become a delinquent child or a runaway child. 
(21 OKLA. STAT. § 856). 

 
f. “Incest” is defined as marrying, committing adultery or fornicating with a person within the degrees of 

consanguinity within which marriages are by the laws of the state declared incestuous and void. (21 
OKLA. STAT. § 885). 
 
g. “Forcible Sodomy” is defined as sodomy committed: 

i. By a person over eighteen (18) years of age upon a person under sixteen (16) years of 
age; 

ii. Upon a person incapable through mental illness or any unsoundness of mind of giving 
legal consent regardless of the age of the person committing the crime; 

iii. With any person by means of force, violence, or threats of force or violence accompanied 
by apparent power of execution regardless of the age of the victim or the person 
committing the crime; 

iv. By a state, county, municipal or political subdivision employee or a contractor or an 
employee of a contractor of the state, a county, a municipality or political subdivision of 
this state upon a person who is under the legal custody, supervision or authority of a state 
agency, a county, a municipality or a political subdivision of this state, or the 
subcontractor or employee of a subcontractor of the contractor of the state or federal 
government, a county, a municipality or a political subdivision of this state; 

v. Upon a person who is at least sixteen (16) years of age but less than twenty (20) years of 
age and is a student of any public or private secondary school, junior high or high school, 
or public vocational school, with a person who is eighteen (18) years of age or older and 
is employed by the same school system; 

vi. Upon a person who is at the time unconscious of the nature of the act, and this fact should 
be known to the accused; 

vii. Upon a person where the person is intoxicated by a narcotic or anesthetic agent 
administered by or with the privity of the accused as a means of forcing the person to 
submit; or 

viii. Upon a person who is at least sixteen (16) years of age but less than eighteen (18) years 
of age by a person responsible for the child's health, safety or welfare. (21 OKLA. STAT. 
§ 888). 

 
h. “Maliciously, forcibly or fraudulently taking or enticing a child away” is defined as maliciously, 

forcibly or fraudulently taking or enticing away any child under the age of sixteen (16) years, with 
intent to detain or conceal such child from its parent, guardian or other person having the lawful 
charge of such child or to transport such child from the jurisdiction of this state or the United States 
without the consent of the person having lawful charge of such child. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 891). 

 
i. “Soliciting or aiding a minor child to perform or showing, exhibiting, loaning or distributing obscene 

material or child pornography” is defined as: 
i. Willfully solicits or aids a minor child to perform any of the following actions: 

1. Lewdly exposing his or her person or genitals in any public place, or in any place 
where there are present other persons to be offended or annoyed thereby; 

137



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 5 of 11 
      

2. Procuring, counseling, or assisting any person to expose such person, or to make 
any other exhibition of such person to public view or to the view of any number 
of persons, for the purpose of sexual stimulation of the viewer; 

3. Writing, composing, stereotyping, printing, photographing, designing, copying, 
drawing, engraving, painting, molding, cutting, or otherwise preparing, 
publishing, selling, distributing, keeping for sale, knowingly downloading on a 
computer, or exhibiting any obscene material or child pornography; or 

4. Making, preparing, cutting, selling, giving, loaning, distributing, keeping for sale, 
or exhibiting any disc record, metal, plastic, or wax, wire or tape recording, or any 
type of obscene material or child pornography; or 

 
ii. Shows, exhibits, loans, or distributes to a minor child any obscene material or child 

pornography for the purpose of inducing said minor to participate in: 
1. Lewdly exposing his or her person or genitals in any public place, or in any place 

where there are present other persons to be offended or annoyed thereby; 
2. Procuring, counseling, or assisting any person to expose such person, or to make 

any other exhibition of such person to public view or to the view of any number 
of persons, for the purpose of sexual stimulation of the viewer; 

3. Writing, composing, stereotyping, printing, photographing, designing, copying, 
drawing, engraving, painting, molding, cutting, or otherwise preparing, 
publishing, selling, distributing, keeping for sale, knowingly downloading on a 
computer, or exhibiting any obscene material or child pornography; or 

4. Making, preparing, cutting, selling, giving, loaning, distributing, keeping for sale, 
or exhibiting any disc record, metal, plastic, or wax, wire or tape recording, or any 
type of obscene material or child pornography. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1021). 

 
j. “Procuring or causing the participation of any minor child in any child pornography or knowingly 

possessing, procuring or manufacturing child pornography” is defined as procuring or causing the 
participation of any minor under the age of eighteen (18) years in any child pornography or who 
knowingly possesses, procures, or manufactures, or causes to be sold or distributed any child 
pornography. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1021.2). 

 
k. “Permitting or consenting the participation of a minor child in any child pornography” is defined as 

a parent, guardian or individual having custody of a minor under the age of eighteen (18) years who 
knowingly permits or consents to the participation of a minor in any child pornography. (21 OKLA. 
STAT. § 1021.3). 

 
l. “Facilitating, encouraging, offering or soliciting sexual conduct with a minor” is defined as 

facilitating, encouraging, offering or soliciting sexual conduct with a minor, or other individual the 
person believes to be a minor, by use of any technology, or engaging in any communication for 
sexual or prurient interest with any minor, or other individual the person believes to be a minor, by 
use of any technology. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1040.13a). 

 
m. “Offering or offering to secure a minor child for the purposes of prostitution or any other lewd or 

indecent act” is defined as: 
i. Offering, or offering to secure, a child under eighteen (18) years of age for the purpose 

of prostitution, or for any other lewd or indecent act, or procure or offer to procure a 
child for, or a place for a child as an inmate in, a house of prostitution or other place 
where prostitution is practiced; 

ii. Receiving or offering or agreeing to receive any child under eighteen (18) years of age 
into any house, place, building, other structure, vehicle, trailer, or other conveyance for 
the purpose of prostitution, lewdness, or assignation, or to permit any person to remain 
there for such purpose; or 

138



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 6 of 11 
      

iii. Directing, taking, or transporting, or offering or agreeing to take or transport, or aid or 
assist in transporting, any child under eighteen (18) years of age to any house, place, 
building, other structure, vehicle, trailer, or other conveyance, or to any other person 
with knowledge or having reasonable cause to believe that the purpose of such directing, 
taking, or transporting is prostitution, lewdness, or assignation. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1087). 

 
n. “Causing, inducing, persuading or encouraging a minor child to engage or continue to engage in 

prostitution” is defined as: 
i. By promise, threats, violence, or by any device or scheme, including but not limited to 

the use of any prohibited controlled dangerous substance causing, inducing, persuading, 
or encouraging a child under eighteen (18) years of age to engage or continue to engage 
in prostitution or to become or remain an inmate of a house of prostitution or other place 
where prostitution is practiced; 

ii. Keeping, holding, detaining, restraining, or compelling against his or her will, any child 
under eighteen (18) years of age to engage in the practice of prostitution or in a house of 
prostitution or other place where prostitution is practiced or allowed; or 

iii. Directly or indirectly keeping, holding, detaining, restraining, or compelling or 
attempting to keep, hold, detain, restrain, or compel a child under eighteen (18) years of 
age to engage in the practice of prostitution or in a house of prostitution or any place 
where prostitution is practiced or allowed for the purpose of compelling such child to 
directly or indirectly pay, liquidate, or cancel any debt, dues, or obligations incurred, or 
said to have been incurred by such child. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1088). 

 
o. “Rape” is defined as sexual intercourse involving vaginal or anal penetration accomplished with a 

male or female who is not the spouse of the perpetrator and who may be of the same or the opposite 
sex as the perpetrator under any of the following circumstances: 

i. Where the victim is under sixteen (16) years of age; 
ii. Where the victim is incapable through mental illness or any other unsoundness of mind, 

whether temporary or permanent, of giving legal consent; 
iii. Where force or violence is used or threatened, accompanied by apparent power of 

execution to the victim or to another person; 
iv. Where the victim is intoxicated by a narcotic or anesthetic agent, administered by or with 

the privity of the accused as a means of forcing the victim to submit; 
v. Where the victim is at the time unconscious of the nature of the act and this fact is known 

to the accused; 
vi. Where the victim submits to sexual intercourse under the belief that the person 

committing the act is a spouse, and this belief is induced by artifice, pretense, or 
concealment practiced by the accused or by the accused in collusion with the spouse with 
intent to induce that belief. In all cases of collusion between the accused and the spouse 
to accomplish such act, both the spouse and the accused, upon conviction, shall be 
deemed guilty of rape; 

vii. Where the victim is under the legal custody or supervision of a state agency, a federal 
agency, a county, a municipality or a political subdivision and engages in sexual 
intercourse with a state, federal, county, municipal or political subdivision employee or 
an employee of a contractor of the state, the federal government, a county, a municipality 
or a political subdivision that exercises authority over the victim, or the subcontractor or 
employee of a subcontractor of the contractor of the state or federal government, a 
county, a municipality or a political subdivision that exercises authority over the victim; 

viii. Where the victim is at least sixteen (16) years of age and is less than twenty (20) years 
of age and is a student, or under the legal custody or supervision of any public or private 
elementary or secondary school, junior high or high school, or public vocational school, 
and engages in sexual intercourse with a person who is eighteen (18) years of age or 
older and is an employee of the same school system; or 

139



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 7 of 11 
      

ix. Where the victim is nineteen (19) years of age or younger and is in the legal custody of 
a state agency, federal agency or tribal court and engages in sexual intercourse with a 
foster parent or foster parent applicant. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1111). 

 
p. “Rape” is defined as an act of sexual intercourse accomplished with a male or female who is the 

spouse of the perpetrator if force or violence is used or threatened, accompanied by apparent power 
of execution to the victim or to another person. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1111). 

 
q. “Rape by instrumentation” is defined as an act within or without the bonds of matrimony in which 

any inanimate object or any part of the human body, not amounting to sexual intercourse is used in 
the carnal knowledge of another person without his or her consent and penetration of the anus or 
vagina occurs to that person. Provided further that (1) where the victim is at least sixteen (16) years 
of age and is less than twenty (20) years of age and is a student, or under the legal custody or 
supervision of any public or private elementary or secondary school, junior high or high school, or 
public vocational school, and engages in conduct prohibited by this section of law with a person 
who is eighteen (18) years of age or older and is an employee of the same school system, or where 
the victim is under the legal custody or supervision of a state or federal agency, county, municipal 
or a political subdivision and engages in conduct prohibited by this section of law with a federal, 
state, county, municipal or political subdivision employee or an employee of a contractor of the 
state, the federal government, a county, a municipality or a political subdivision that exercises 
authority over the victim, or (2) where the victim is nineteen (19) years of age or younger and in the 
legal custody of a state agency, federal agency or tribal court and engages in conduct prohibited by 
this section of law with a foster parent or foster parent applicant, consent is not an element. (21 
OKLA. STAT. § 1111.1). 

 
r. “Making any oral, written or electronically or computer-generated lewd or indecent proposals to a minor 
child under the age of sixteen (16)” is defined as making any oral, written or electronically or computer-generated 
lewd or indecent proposal to any child under sixteen (16) years of age, or other individual the person believes to be a 
child under sixteen (16) years of age, for the child to have unlawful sexual relations or sexual intercourse with any 
person. (21 OKLA. STAT. § 1123). 

s. “Exploitation” is defined as an unjust or improper use of the resources of  an incapacitated person, 
a partially incapacitated person, or a minor for the profit or advantage, pecuniary or otherwise, of a 
person other than  an incapacitated person, a partially incapacitated person, or a minor through the 
use of undue influence, coercion, harassment, duress, deception, false representation or false 
pretenses (30 OKLA. STAT. § 1-111). 

 
t. “Child Trafficking” as defined below. 

 
2. “Child Trafficking” includes, but is not limited to behavior that consists of the acceptance, solicitation, offer, 

payment or transfer of any compensation, in money, property or other thing of value, at any time, by any 
person in connection with the acquisition or transfer of the legal or physical custody or adoption of a minor 
child, except as ordered by the court or except as otherwise provided by Section 7505-3.2 of Title 10 of the 
Oklahoma Statutes. (21 Okla. Stat. § 866). 

 
3. A "person responsible for a child's health, safety or welfare" includes a parent, a legal guardian, a custodian, 

a foster parent, a person 18 years of age or older with whom the child's parent cohabitates or any other adult 
residing in the home of the child, an agent or employee of a public or private residential home, institution or 
facility, or an owner, operator or employee of a child care facility as defined by OKLA. STAT. tit. 10 § 402. 

 
4. “Parent” refers to parents, guardians or others who have legal responsibilities for specific children. 

 
Reporting Suspected Abuse, Neglect Exploitation or Trafficking 
 

140



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 8 of 11 
      

Any district employee having reasonable cause to believe that any student is a victim of abuse, neglect or 
exploitation shall immediately report this matter to:  
 

(1) Oklahoma Department of Human Services (“DHS”) through the hotline designated for this purpose 
(1-800-522-3511), AND  

 
(2) local law enforcement.   

 
Additionally, any district employee must report suspected child trafficking to:  
 

(1) Oklahoma Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control (“OBNDDC”) at 1-800-522-8031,  
 
(2) DHS through the hotline designated for this purpose (1-800-522-3511), AND 
 

(3) local law enforcement.   
 
After a report is made to DHS or OBNDDC via the hotline or to law enforcement, the reporting party will prepare a 
written report which contains the confirmation number of the report (if applicable), the date and time of the telephone 
contact, the name of the person to whom the district employee made the oral report, the names and addresses of the 
student, the parents, and any other responsible persons, the student's age, the nature and extent of injuries, any previous 
incidents, and any other helpful information.  A copy of this report will be furnished to the principal or, if the reporter 
believes the principal is not an appropriate individual, to the superintendent.   
 
Investigating Abuse, Neglect or Exploitation 

 
At the request of appropriately identified investigators of DHS, OBNDDC or the district attorney's office or local law 
enforcement, the superintendent, principal or other school official shall permit the investigators access to the student 
about whom the agency received a report.  The interview will be arranged in a manner that minimizes embarrassment 
to the student.  The superintendent will not contact the parent, guardian or other person responsible for the student's 
health or welfare prior to or following the interview, unless permission for parent contact is provided by DHS, 
OBNDDC or the district attorney's officeor law enforcement authorities.  No district employee will be present during 
the interview.  However, a district employee may be present prior to the interview if the employee believes that his or 
her temporary presence will make the student more comfortable or if the representatives request the presence of a 
district employee during the interview. 
 
Reports to Principal or Other School Officials 
 
Suspected instances of abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking, whether the result of circumstances at home, school 
or at other locations, affects the student while he or she is at school or participating in school activities.  Consequently, 
employees are required to report any suspicion of abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking by any individual, whether 
the identity is known or unknown, to the principal or other school official.  This reporting obligation exists in all 
instances, including circumstances suggestive of this conduct at school or connected with school activities.  
Accordingly, this policy includes an obligation to notify the principal or other school official, if for any reason the 
employee has a reasonable belief that the principal should not be notified, in any instance involving suspected abuse, 
neglect, exploitation or trafficking of a student.  
 
Immunity for Good Faith Reports 
 
Oklahoma law provides that any district employee who in good faith and exercising due care makes a report to DHS 
or another appropriate law enforcement office, allows access to a student by persons authorized to investigate a report 
concerning the student or participates in any judicial proceeding resulting from a report, shall have immunity from 
any liability, civil or criminal, that might otherwise be incurred or imposed.  
 

141



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 9 of 11 
      

Neither the board of education nor any district employee will discharge or in any manner discriminate or retaliate 
against the person who in good faith provides such reports or information, testifies, or is about to testify in any 
proceeding involving abuse, neglect, exploitation, or trafficking, provided that the person did not perpetrate or inflict 
the abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking. 
 
Information Concerning Abuse, Neglect or Exploitation 
 
In any instance in which the district receives a report from DHS regarding any confirmed report of sexual abuse or 
severe physical abuse concerning the student, the superintendent will forward to a subsequent school in which the 
student enrolls all confirmed reports of sexual abuse and severe physical abuse received from DHS, and the 
superintendent will notify DHS of the student's new school and address, if known. 
 
All information or documents generated or received by the district in regard to the matter are confidential and shall 
not be disclosed except to investigators of DHS, the district's attorneys, the district attorney's office, a subsequent 
district in which the student enrolls, a person designated to assist in the treatment of or with services provided to the 
student or other state or federal officials in connection with the performance of their official duties.  The information 
or documents shall be maintained and transmitted by the district in the same manner as special education records.  
 
Reference:   10A OKLA. STAT. §1-2-101 et seq.  
  30  OKLA. STAT.  § 4-903 
  70  OKLA. STAT.  § 1210.163 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

142



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 10 of 11 
      

CHILD ABUSE, NEGLECT, EXPLOITATION AND TRAFFICKING REPORT FORM 
 
Any District employee having reasonable cause to believe that a student is the victim of abuse, neglect, or exploitation 
must IMMEDIATELY report this matter to the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (DHS) through the hotline 
designated for this purpose (800-522-3511) and to local law enforcement. In addition to reports to DHS and local law 
enforcement above, employees must report suspected child trafficking to the Oklahoma Bureau of Narcotics and 
Dangerous Drugs Control (OBNDDC) at 800-522-8031. 
 
In accordance with the District’s “Abuse, Neglect, Exploitation and Trafficking” policy, an employee should also 
provide notice to the school principal or other school official that a report was made to DHS, local law enforcement, 
and/or OBNDDC, and provide relevant information on the report for the District’s records.    

 
Instructions: 

 
This form should be completed in full and immediately delivered to the school site principal.  If for some reason the 
reporting party believes the principal is not the appropriate individual to receive the report, then this completed form 
should be immediately delivered to the superintendent. 
 

Reporting Employee Information 
 

Reporting Employee Name:                               

Title/Position:  

Date & Time notified of suspected 
abuse, neglect, exploitation or 
trafficking: 

 

 
Student Information 

 
Student Name:            

Student Address:            

Student DOB/Age:            

Student ID Number:            

Parent/Guardian:            

Parent/Guardian Contact #:          
       
Description of suspected abuse, neglect, exploitation or trafficking and other information and/or document(s) 
(including information regarding any previous incidents) know to the reporting party (attached separate page if 
additional space needed): 

              

              

              

              

              

              
(See Next Page) 

Reporting Information 

143



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              F-18 
          
 

 
Adoption Date:     Revision Date(s): 08-11-2014, 10-08-2018                       Page 11 of 11 
      

(ALL FIELDS MUST BE COMPLETED or Marked N/A) 
 
 

Oklahoma Department of Human Services (Mandatory in all cases) 
 
Date of DHS Hotline (800-522-3511) Notification:        

Time of DHS Hotline (800-522-3511) Notification:        

Name of DHS Hotline Employee Contacted:        

DHS Case/Confirmation Number:          
 
 

Law Enforcement (Mandatory in all cases) 
 
Date of Law Enforcement Notification:         

Time of Law Enforcement Notification:         

Agency and Law Enforcement Employee Contacted:       

Method of Communication with Law Enforcement:        

Case or Report Number:           
 
 
 

Oklahoma Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control (OBNDDC) 
(Mandatory only if suspected child trafficking)  

 
Date of OBNDDC Hotline (800-522-8031) Notification:       

Time of OBNDDC (800-522-8031) Notification:        

Name of OBNDDC Hotline Employee Contacted:        

OBNDDC Case/Confirmation Number:         
 
 
 
             
      Signature of Reporting Employee 
 

Date Report Completed:      
 

Time Report Completed:      
 
 

144



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                              G-13 
 
 

 
Adoption Date: 06-08-2009                               Revision Date(s):  10-8-18                                                 Page 1 of 1 
 

         
DISTRIBUTION OF SURVEYS 

 
 
It is the policy of the Guthrie Board of Education that surveys in any form shall not be distributed to students or staff 
without first being approved by the Board of Education at a Regular or Special Board of Education Meeting. 
 
 

145



146



The K20 GEAR UP for the FUTURE (Forging Undergraduates Through University Readiness 
Experiences) project will build on existing partnerships between the K20 Center for 
Educational and Community Renewal (K20) and 11 schools from seven Oklahoma school 
districts (4729 students) as well as numerous community, industry, and professional 
partners to develop interactive learning communities in participating schools. These 
learning communities will establish high expectations, decrease high school dropout 
rates and increase graduation rates, prepare students to excel academically, and help 
students gain admission into institutions of postsecondary education through college fit 
planning. 

Partner Schools
• El Reno  

Etta Dale Junior High

• Guthrie Junior High

• Lawton  
Central Middle School 
Eisenhower Middle School 
MacArthur Middle School 
Tomlinson Middle School

• Noble  
Curtis Inge Middle School

• Putnam City  
Capps Middle School 
Cooper MiddleSchool

• Santa Fe South Middle School

• Shawnee Middle School

Post-Secondary Education, State and  
Community-based Organizations
• Boomerang Projects Link Crew

• Cameron University

• Eastern Oklahoma State College

• Generation Citizen

• K20 Center’s Career Speaker’s Bureau

• Langston University

• Northeastern State University

• Oklahoma City Community College

• Oklahoma City University

• Oklahoma Office of Workforce 
Development - Oklahoma Works

• Oklahoma State Regents for 
Higher Education

• Oklahoma State University

• OneNet

• Southeastern Oklahoma State University

• Southwestern Oklahoma State University

• University of Central Oklahoma

• University of Oklahoma

• University of Science and Arts  
of Oklahoma

• Wichita State University

FUTUREFOR 
THE

147



Who is the K20 Center?

The K20 Center for Educational and Community 
Renewal is a statewide education research and 
development center that promotes innovative 
learning through school-university-community 
collaboration.

Our mission is to cultivate a collaborative 
network engaged in research and outreach 
that creates and sustains innovation and 
transformation through leadership development, 
shared learning, and authentic technology 
integration. Through the GEAR UP grants, we aim 
to provide the students of cohort schools and 
their teachers, counselors, and families with a 
range of support services to help them prepare 
their students for success in high school, college, 
and career. Though the grants only last a few 
years, the work over the course of those years 
that will be implemented by school staff (i.e. 
leaders, teachers, counselors, and K20 Center 
Staff) will create a structure of supports that will 
be left in place so future students will benefit as 
well.

148



What is GEAR UP?

Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate 
Programs (GEAR UP) is a federal grant provided by the U.S. 
Department of Education to help students prepare for and pursue 
a college education.

The K20 Center has already worked with many schools, both 
urban and rural, across the state in past GEAR UP efforts. The 
power of a GEAR UP project is that it transforms a high-poverty 
school community into a college-going culture. 

 

GEAR UP for SUCCESS

Over the course of a 6-year grant, the K20 
Center provided college readiness services to 
3,549 cohort students from 32 high-poverty, 
ethnically-diverse districts mostly in rural 
Oklahoma. K20 Center’s partnership with these 
schools nearly doubled ACT participation, raising 
it from 45.6% of cohort students to 80%. Among 
the grant’s other successes are that graduation 
rates went up, rising from 79.7% of students 
matriculating to 89.5%; and college enrollment 
increased at these same schools, leaping from 
46.8% before GEAR UP to 62% after. 

 

GEAR UP for the PROMISE

During this 7-year grant, the K20 Center 
provided college readiness services to 4,337 
cohort students from nine high-poverty, 
ethnically-diverse, urban schools. Among other 
achievements, K20 Center’s ongoing partnership 
with these schools has, thus far, resulted in 
93% of cohort students enrolling in college 
preparatory classes as 9th graders, increasing 
to 100% as 11th graders. ACT scores also showed 
improvement, raising by 3.5% in English, 4.5% in 
mathematics, and 1.4% in science.

College 
Enrollment 62%46.8%

before GEAR UP after GEAR UP

enrollment in 
college prep 

classes

ACT  
scores

college 
readiness 
awareness

Past K20 GEAR UP Program Overviews

149



PROJECT NEED
To be eligible for GEAR UP, schools must have 
a 7th grade educational program and 50% or 
more of their student body that qualify for the 
National School Lunch Program. The average 
eligibility for this program at FUTURE cohort 
schools is 78.1% (OSDE, 2018).

There is a tremendous need in the 11 cohort 
schools for FUTURE. Growing levels of poverty, 
a lack of state financial support, underprepared 
teachers, and lack of rigorous college 
preparation point to the need for intervention.

Lack of Support
Berger and Fisher (2013) identified state 
investment in education as the strongest 
intervention for poverty and states as having 
the greatest role to play in “making sure that 
all of their people — particularly those from the 
most disadvantaged backgrounds—have the 
tools to be highly productive. Education is the 
key to that” (p. 3). Oklahoma has failed to direct 
resources toward its youth, as demonstrated in 
the April 2018 teacher walkout. Oklahoma leads 
the nation in education funding cuts since 2008. 
Increases yielded from the walkout recovered 
only 36.9% of the reported $1.3 billion needed to 
reach the region’s average per-student spending 
(NCES, 2016). 

Budget Problems and Teacher Shortage
Education Week (2017) gave Oklahoma a 
D+ overall on its educational effectiveness 
report card with failing grades in academic 
performance (52.8) and spending on school 
finance (43.4). Education Trust (2010) indicates 
that 14.7% of Oklahoma classes are taught 
by teachers without a degree major or a 
certification in the subject they teach. The 
American Institutes for Research (2015) reported 
that from 2010 to 2015 more Oklahoma educators 
left the profession than joined it. More and 

 
 
more, schools are forced to replace teachers 
who leave the profession with a less-qualified 
candidate. There was a 60.34% increase of 
emergency certified teachers in the FUTURE 
cohort from 2015 to 2017. 

Poor Engagement and Declining Achievement
FUTURE students lack academic engagement, 
which research suggests is key to academic 
success. Cohort schools rank significantly lower 
than U.S. and Oklahoma averages in measures of 
academic readiness and educational aspirations. 
A significant performance gap in key academic 
outcomes is related to students’ low level of 
engagement in their learning. Students’ lack of 
engagement can have serious consequences, 
leading not only to diminished academic 
achievement, but also to behavior problems, 
criminal activity, and school dropout (Weiss et 
al., 2010).

The implications of teaching and student 
engagement can be quantified when comparing 
cohort academic outcomes to national averages. 
The cohort average falls below the nation in 
each of the four areas of the ACT: English (18.8 
vs. 20.1), mathematics (18.7 vs. 20.6), reading 
(20.6 vs. 21.7), and science (20.0 vs. 20.9). When 
compared to other students within the stressed 
Oklahoma educational system, 4.1% fewer cohort 
seniors enroll in PSE following high school 
graduation, with a greater percentage requiring 
remediation (45.4% vs. 40.5%) and earning a GPA 
below 2.0 (31.1% vs. 20.4%).

150



PROJECT DESIGN
K20 GEAR UP for the FUTURE seeks to directly impact 4729 students from 11 Oklahoma schools. 
FUTURE has identified three goals that clearly define a methodology to guide the implementation of an 
evidence-based approach to improve students’ college readiness, awareness, and fit.

 

GOAL 1: Increase cohort academic performance and preparation for postsecondary 
education (PSE)

GOAL 2: Increase high school graduation and PSE participation of cohort GOAL

GOAL 3: 
Increase student educational expectations and increase students’ and 
families’ knowledge of postsecondary education options, preparation, and 
financing

 Cohort Academic Readiness 

santa fe 
south shawnee compare

cohort 
avg.districts: el reno guthrie lawton noble

putnam 
city

a
c

a
d

em
ic

 r
ea

d
in

es
s 

o
n
 a

c
t

english

crb  0.9  0.9  1.7  1.9  0.2 -2.5  2.2 18
18.8-1.2 -1.2 -0.4 -0.3 -1.9 -4.6  0.1 20.1

-1.2 -1.2 -0.4 -0.2 -1.9 -4.6  0.1 20.1

math

crb -2.7 -3.2 -2.7 -2.9 -3.4 -5.1 -2.7 22
18.7-0.5 -0.9 -0.4 -0.7 -1.1 -2.9 -0.5 19.7

-1.3 -1.8 -1.3 -1.5 -2 -3.7 -1.3 20.6

reading

crb -1.2 -0.8 -0.7 -0.9 -1.9 -4.2  0.1 22
20.6-0.9 -0.5 -1.3 -0.6 -1.6 -3.8  0.4 21.7

-0.5 -0.1  0 -0.2 -1.2 -3.5  0.8 21.3

science

crb -2.9 -2.6 -2.6 -2.4 -3.2 -5.1 -2.2 23
20-0.7 -0.5 -0.5 -0.3 -1.1  -3 -0.1 20.9

-0.7 -0.4 -0.4 -0.2 -1 -2.9  0 20.8

composite
-0.8 -0.8 -0.4 -0.4 -1.4 -3.6  0 20.8

19.7
-0.9 -0.8 -0.5 -0.5 -1.4 -3.6 -0.1 20.8

enrollment 
in pse

% 41.1% 46.6% 41.3% 44% 39.7% 56% 44.9%
47.3% 43.20%

-6.2% -0.6% -5.9% -3.2% -7.6%  8.8% -2.4%

remedial 
coursework

% 46.6% 30.4% 42.7% 37.8% 52.9% 72.1% 43.8%
40.5% 45.40%

 6% -10.1%  2.1% -2.7% 12.4% 31.6%  3.2%

pse gpa 
below 2.0

% 25.7% 33% 30.1% 35.6% 36.8% 41.8%  13.8%
20.4% 31.10%

-5% -13% -10% -15% -16% -21%  7%

151



SERVICES
 
College and Career  
Readiness Culture
FUTURE’s project services will center 
around the process of developing a 
sustainable college and career readiness 
culture that supports rigorous curriculum, 
promotes student achievement through 
the attainment of college-ready academic 
behaviors and skills, and provides students 
with opportunities to explore an array of 
postsecondary education institutions to 
determine which environment best fits 
their academic, social, and career needs/
requirements.

Leadership Institute FUTURE will engage 
leaders in a learning experience that starts 
with a nationally recognized Leadership 
Institute and persists through ongoing 
engagement within a professional learning 
community. Leaders will (1) be introduced 
to K20’s theoretical framework, (2) explore 
school improvement theory, (3) investigate 
change theory and data-driven decision-
making strategies to explore research-based 
practices that would provide students with 
academic supports or enrichment, and (4) 
learn professional development theory. 
Leaders will develop a better understanding 
of their school’s earning climate and explore 
methods for building structures to create 
an environment of effective and reflective 
shared leadership. 

Learning Teams FUTURE schools will each 
identify a Learning Team consisting of the 
leader, counselor, cohort teachers, and other 
stakeholders, such as students, parents, 
and community members. The Learning 
Team provides a structure for meaningful 
innovation. FUTURE will partner with the 
school Learning Teams to implement site-
based action plans and support field-tested, 
college-readiness academic supports. 

Site-Based Action Plans GEAR UP for the 
FUTURE schools and project staff will work 
together to use K20’s logic model platform, 
PLANS (Project Logic-models: Adapting Novel 
Strategies for school), to create site-based 
action plans. The six-stage action plan-
building process includes data analysis, 
defining research, setting goals, determining 
activities and resources, indicating outputs, 
and defining intermediate and long-term 
outcomes. This process promotes schools’ 
innovation in creating culturally relevant, 
research-based academic supports that 
will prepare students academically and 

encourage students and their families to 
explore postsecondary education.

Professional Development and 
Academics
The Learning Team will also collaborate 
with project professional development staff 
to present and support research-based 
instructional strategies, serve as points of 
contact for student-based services, co-
facilitate evening college information events, 
and work with FUTURE staff to arrange 
student exploration of PSE sites. FUTURE 
will also work to harness local expertise to 
build and support the capacity of the school 
and community in replicating evidence-
based activities that have had the greatest 
impact on student readiness. Counselor and 
Parent academies. bring together key project 
stakeholders to gain practical insight from 
research as well as best practices.

Academic Readiness
More than 85% of low-income high school 
graduates who enter college are deemed not 
academically prepared for college (Hoffman 
et al., 2008). To ensure that FUTURE students 
are exposed to rigorous coursework, K20 
will partner with schools and stakeholders 
to increase student access to meaningful, 
student-centered learning. Through K20’s 
Authentic Learning process, individual 
students build on what they know to create 
deep knowledge as they engage in relevant 
learning tasks, problems, and challenges 
that are guided by focused conversations 
grounded in the use of essential questions.

Authentic Teaching and Learning 
The correlation of significant student gains 
through high levels of authentic pedagogy 
and content has been well documented 
(Jeter et al., 2018; Stroukoff et al., 2018; 
Hetherington et al., 2014). Authenticity 
emphasizes learning strategies and 
instructional sequencing, which provide 
deeper conceptual understanding (Tornwall, 
2017) and increase the likelihood of transfer 
to real-world situations (White et al., 2017).  

An Instructional Support Team, consisting 
of master teachers with exemplary content, 
pedagogy, and technology backgrounds, 
will serve as Instructional Coaches for the 
FUTURE project. They will work with Learning 
Teams to identify and implement research-
based professional development experiences 
that support cohort schools’ action plans.  

LEARN LEARN is the K20 Center’s repository 
of high-quality, authentic lessons. The 
lessons promote academic rigor and student 
engagement. As part of the FUTURE project, 
the Instructional Support Team will develop 

additional lessons for cohort teachers to use 
in the classroom. After being validated in 
the classroom, the lessons will be published 
to the LEARN repository. These authentic 
lessons will develop critical thinking skills to 
prepare students for PSE success, reducing 
the need for remedial coursework.  

Action Research in Authenticity (ARA)
K20 has developed an authentic teaching 
professional development structure, ARA, 
which places the teacher in the role of 
both learner and action researcher. The 
Instructional Support Team will recruit 
teachers for this extended professional 
development process. Each participating 
teacher has access to a year-long 
professional development experience, 
starting with a four-day summer institute 
that explores the theory and practical 
application of authenticity. As teachers 
implement a series of authentic LEARN 
lessons in their classrooms, they 
are mentored by FUTURE curriculum 
specialists and identify their strengths and 
opportunities for growth.

Student Readiness
FUTURE will implement a series of student 
project services for both academic and social 
supports to better prepare cohort students 
for persistence in PSE. Project, school, and 
partner personnel will offer activities to 
increase the number of cohort students 
and parents visiting campuses and gaining 
knowledge about entrance requirements, 
degrees and careers, cost, scholarship and 
student financial aid options, location, 
educational environment, and college fit. 
To communicate PSE attainability, FUTURE 
will issue personalized 21st Century Scholar 
Certificates identifying (1) available federal 
financial aid and (2) Oklahoma’s tuition 
scholarship (based on family income) to 
each student entering high school. PSE 
institutes, community stakeholders, state 
agencies, and school partners will provide 
meaningful experiences for students on 
college campuses. These student services 
are built on reaching students through 
college experiences, interactive learning, and 
mentoring and tutoring. 

College Teams FUTURE provides a 
foundation of PSE awareness by facilitating 
campus visits for each cohort student. 
Students who do not have opportunities 
for college visits or other PSE experiences 
often enter college without contextual 
supports. Providing an annual campus visit 
gives every cohort student the opportunity 
to explore a minimum of five PSE sites 
(including community, regional, and research 152



institutes) throughout their six-year middle 
and high school careers. Prior to each 
visit, the school’s College Team (five staff, 
including one counselor) will use a pre-visit 
curriculum kit from the LEARN repository 
to engage students in the exploration of 
the upcoming visit (student life, degree 
path, entrance requirements, and cost). 
This exploration will prepare students 
for meaningful interactions with college 
faculty, staff, students and mentors as they 
receive information about the campus. 
Each visit delivers activities to highlight 
college match and college fit and aligns with 
federal and state recommended timelines 
and milestones for PSE preparation and 
enrollment.   

Dual Enrollment Senior cohort students 
will participate in Statway for Seniors, a 
dual enrollment, co-requisite course to earn 
on-level, college mathematics credits. This 
instructional support will help students (1) 
avoid the social stigma of a remedial course, 
(2) gain PSE credit while in high school, 
and (3) acclimate to the rigors of a college 
curriculum.

Game-Based Learning Game-based 
learning (GBL) can aid in comprehension, 
reflection, evaluation, and inquiry, allowing 
learners to explore the cause and effect 
between elements. Serious games are 
well-suited for deep learning environments, 
which are the tenets of authentic, inquiry-
based instruction and the foundation of 
K20’s GBL deliverables. The K20 Center has 
produced 18 GBL titles that have generated 
more than 56,373 hours of student-engaged 
learning. FUTURE students will have the 
opportunity to engage with the existing 

games as well as additional titles that will be 
produced that address STEM awareness and 
college access. One of these games, AWARE 
(Applied Weather Academics and Readiness 
Experiences), will ask students to assume 
the role of an emergency manager tasked 
with designing a weather-ready response 
plan for a community-based event. Another 
game will be part of a larger computational 
thinking curriculum intended to introduce 
students to the concepts that underlie the 
computer science field.

Mentoring and Tutoring A national 
sample of 7th to 12th graders found that 
students who reported experiencing a 
mentoring relationship demonstrated 
increased high school completion, college 
attendance, employment, self-esteem, 
and life satisfaction (DuBois et al., 2011). 
FUTURE will employ a highly qualified 
mentoring coordinator who will work with 
cohort schools to identify needs and match 
them with a research-based School-Based 
Mentoring (SBM) program.  

Link Crew Link Crew is a peer-based SBM 
program that had a profound impact on 
the students receiving mentoring as well 
as those students providing mentoring 
in a FY2011 GEAR UP project. Link Crew’s 
peer year-long mentoring and tutoring 
program targets the middle to high school 
transition and links upperclassmen 
(mentors) with incoming freshmen. Link Crew 
supports academic success and character 
development through mentors’ classroom 
visits and encourages mentor and freshman 
connections at social events to create 
positive school climate. Contributing to Link 
Crew sustainability, cohort students change 

their role from mentee to mentor as they 
progress toward graduation.

Career Mentoring A group of career-based 
mentoring initiatives will provide FUTURE 
students with a structure through which they 
can speak directly with community members 
about careers, degree path, and college 
planning.

FUTURE will partner with Oklahoma Works’ 
Career Exposure Week, which seeks to 
introduce students to careers in business 
and industry. Events during Career Expo 
Week allow Oklahoma employers to 
showcase a broad range of critical careers 
from across the state while allowing 
students to see the array of careers 
available to them (Oklahoma Works, 2018).  

Based on student feedback, schools will 
invite a group of professionals to participate 
in school-based career talks entitled Career 
Cafés. Each Café provides a forum in which 
cohort students can speak with community 
members about careers and college in a 
small-group atmosphere over the lunch 
period.

College2Career Forums, a series of focused, 
career-specific explorations, will be planned 
for several popular careers. Each school 
will be invited to identify students who 
are interested in a targeted career and 
transport them to a local partnering PSE, 
where they will engage in a hands-on activity 
that exemplifies the career. Equipped with 
these experiences, students then have an 
opportunity to visit an actual business, 
shadow a practicing professional, and 
engage in a short mentoring session with 
that professional. 

cc
r 

cu
lt

ur
e

ac
ad

em
ic

s
st

ud
en

t

resources  activities  outputs  outcomes 
short term mid term long term

GEAR UP for the FUTURE Logic Model

 % future cohort 
students who attain a  

pse certificate  
and/or degree

gu students

 ccr framework

gu parents

gu teachers

cohort schools

district staff

gear up staff

partners
k20 staff
k20 center

$ federal
$ non-federal

  

high school

graduation



pse enrollment 



remediation

rates

 

IES  WWC 
 INTERVENTION REPORTS

leadership 

site action plans

college teams

action research in 
authentiticy

interactive gbl

learn authentic units

career expo

m
en

to
ri

ng

career café
college2career

forum

link crew

 statway for seniors

high-quality pd

counselor academy

parent academy

# ccr leaders  # schools w/ccr culture

# academic supports  academic supports

# student ccr activities

# family ccr activities # family ccr knowledge

 student ccr knowledge

# teachers in ara

 student engagement

# authentic lessons

 student absences

# authentic resources

 % college ready on sat

  # college 
 math credits

# of game-based 
learning players

 student gpa

  # dual enrolled 
students

# career-based events

# hrs of peer mentoring

 teachers teach authentic

# academic enrichments  academic enrichments

 parent involvement

153



EVALUATION
The evaluation plan will explore the impact of 
the project on schools by leveraging formative 
feedback, identifying improvements that 
demonstrate the greatest promise, and actively 
listening to stakeholders of the previous GEAR 
UP projects. The evaluation plan will assess 
whether the project effectively increased 
the number of cohort students who enroll in 
postsecondary education immediately following 
high school graduation. The evaluation plan is a 
2-pronged, blended approach:

Mini-research studies 

K20 Engaged Researchers will work with a cross-
functional team to collaboratively generate 
innovative research methodologies to evaluate 
the efficacy of interventions. The mini-research 
model serves as formative feedback on pilots 
of innovative services (producing evidence of 
promise) that can be scaled up to the entire 
cohort.

Comprehensive review of the project’s goals, 
objectives, and performance measures 

GEAR UP for the FUTURE will annually measure 
progress toward achieving identified outcomes 
and performance measures over the project 
period. 

Evaluation of Goal 1. Project evaluation will use 
district and school data to measure academic 
progress. Tracking will be longitudinal for each 
grade level of the cohort and compared with 
previous years’ students.

Evaluation of Goal 2. Evaluation teams will collect 
and analyze data from schools annually. FUTURE 
will measure student engagement at the school 

and classroom levels and will also measure 
students’ college expectations using research-
validated assessments.

Evaluation of Goal 3. Annual student, parent, 
and teacher surveys will assess knowledge of 
postsecondary education options, preparation, 
and financing. After administering the PSAT/SAT, 
data measuring preparation for postsecondary 
education will be analyzed and summarized. 
Additionally, qualitative data related to 
workshops, academic/financial counseling, and a 
development plan for postsecondary education 
will also be collected. Comparisons will provide 
a benchmark student group with similar 
demographics to determine if GEAR UP for the 
FUTURE interventions are having the planned 
effects and outcomes per project design. 

NEXT STEPS
GEAR UP for the FUTURE is now being reviewed. 
If the project is approved, the K20 Center will 
receive a funding notification. The project will 
begin as soon as this notification arrives.

154



 

 222 east 10th street plaza  
Edmond, ok 73034  

t(405)330-8292 
f(405)330-8293 

 

 change order 
Owner  x        Architect    x        Contractor  x        Field           Other     
 

      
 

Not valid until signed by the Owner, Architect and Contractor. 
        
      
The original Contract Sum . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $576,200.00    
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.00   
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  $576,200.00  
The contingency will be reduced by this Change Order . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       $14,795.55 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $576,200.00   
The Contract Time will be changed by (0) Days  
The Date of Substantial Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is increased by (0) Days 
 
NOTE:   This summary does not reflect changes in the Contract Sum, Contract Time or Guaranteed Maximum Price 

which have been authorized by Construction Change Directive.     
     
    Authorized: 
 
The Stacy Group  Pope Contracting, Inc.   Guthrie Public Schools  
ARCHITECT  CONTRACTOR  OWNER 
222 E. 10th St. Plaza   8508 Western   802 E Vilas  
Address  Address  Address 
Edmond, OK 73034   Oklahoma City, OK 73139   Guthrie, OK 73044  
 
BY  BY  BY   
 
DATE  8.9.18  DATE  DATE  
      

project: Guthrie Jr High change order no.:  1 
               
owner: Guthrie Public Schools 

 
date of issuance: 8.9.18 

 
to:     Pope Contracting, Inc. 
         8508 Western 
         Oklahoma City, OK 73139 
 

 
architect:     The Stacy Group 
                      222 east 10th street plaza,  
                      Edmond, OK 73034           

 
 

 
architect’s project no.: 1816 

The Contract is changed as follows:   
 
Items:  
COR 1: Sidewalk Replacement/ Correct Drainage                  $14,795.55 
      Deduct from $25,000 Contingency           
    

 Total Contingency Remaining                                  $10,204.45 
    
      

155



156



Board of Education Personnel Reports

Employment Request

Replacing

Hrs Per 

Day

Pay 

Grade

First 

Work DayTeaching AssignmentSiteName

Classification Certified

Boyd, Harley Junior High Spec. Ed Mild/Mod 09/10/18 6 Linda Wilson

Replacing

Hrs Per 

Day

Pay 

Grade

First 

Work DayTeaching AssignmentSiteName

Classification Support

Dalzell, Lisa Junior High Cafeteria 10/01/18 2 6 Socorro Feliz

Jones, Tracy GUES Cafeteria 10/01/18 2 5.5 New Position

Lewis, Marvin Cotteral Cafeteria 10/08/18 2 7 Maxine West

Smith, Chasity Junior High Cafeteria 09/24/18 2 6.5 Daniqua Bickell

Walker, Ilda Cotteral Cafeteria 10/03/18 2 7.5 Sharon Steed

Separation of Employment

Classification Support

Name Site Teaching Assignment Reason for Separation Effective Date

Allnutt, Cassidy Junior High Caf. Manager 9/12/2018Terminated
Jennings, Dave Central Custodian 9/20/2018Terminated
Steed, Sharon Cotteral Cafeteria Worker 7.5 Hrs 10/10/2018Resigning
Stevenson, Susanne Transportation Route Driver 8/31/2018Terminated
West, Maxine Cotteral Cafeteria Worker 10/10/2018Resigning

Transfer of Position Report

Classification Support

Name Transfered  From Transfered To Replacing Tran sfer Date

Bickell, Daniqua Jr. High Caf. Worker Jr. High Caf. Manager Cassidy Allnutt 9/17/2018

10/3/2018

157



158



Guthrie Public Schools 
Property Committee Meeting 

  October 1, 2018     5:00 p.m. 
 
Members present: Dr. Mike Simpson, Doug Ogle, Michelle Chapple, Cody Thompson, Janna 
Pierson, Tina Smedley, and Linda Skinner. 
 
Mr. Thompson spoke on the following items:  

Expenditure Reports: 
           -   Summarized the expenses for September   
  -   32 new Purchase Orders for September   
  

Completed Projects: 
  -   262 Work-Orders completed at Maintenance 
  -   HVAC repairs/upgrades throughout the District  
  -   Plumbing/Electrical/Door, key, and lock repairs/upgrades 

    district wide  
  -   Cleaned out grease trap at GUES   

-   Annual district boiler inspections completed 
-   Moved items for Teacher moving from Fogarty to Cotteral and 
     painted her classroom  

  -   Distributed 77 boxes of books to GUES, HS, and Jr. High 
  -   Picked up all moving boxes for return credit 
           -   Repaired swing sets at Central ES 
  -   Installed outside signage at Charter Oak ES 
  -   Completed repairs and put down finish to Fogarty gym 
  -   Replaced restroom partition walls at Fogarty 
  -   Repaired dish machine at Central  
  -   Moved teacher’s items to Golden Age 
   -   Installed new compressor for the chiller at GUES 
 

Projects in Progress: 
  -   Currently have 191 Maintenance Work-Orders in progress 
  -   District HVAC, Electrical and Plumbing repairs 
  -   Replacing air filters at all sites and cleaning coils  
  -   Making needed repairs to our bus fleet 
  -   Continuing roof repairs where needed at all sites: 
                               a. Fogarty Quad bldg. and coping stone on main roof 
                               b. Central – Kitchen roof and east hallway sections 
                               c. Jr. High – Gym & part of the lower main roof 
         d. Administration – Board room and Spec Needs area 
  -   Extend existing north sidewalk at IT building 
  -   Adjusting bus routes, stops, and drivers as we continue 
                             the transition to neighborhood school boundaries 
  -   Continue to move Smart Boards at elementary sites 
  -   Replace one of the compressors on the GUES chiller  
      due to lightning strike – Insurance claim  

            -   Charter Oak wood fencing – Phase II 
            -   Parking lot repairs at GUES, Bus lot, and the HS 

159



 -   Update outside signage as needed at each site 
 -   Repair the outside siding to football building at Faver annex 
 -   Continue to upgrade the master key/lock system at all sites 
 -   Floor work when the VCT flooring is put down in Charter Oak café  
 
       

  
 Bond Projects Discussion: 

Charter Oak ES – Dr. Simpson discussed the progress of the kitchen, café, 
gym, and the punch list.  Issues and concerns will be addressed at the 
scheduled construction meeting.   
 
J.H. – Dr. Simpson discussed the change order for the sidewalk replacement, 
install condensate lines, and removing the barrels. Windows are being 
installed.  
 
H.S. – Scope and specifications for Phase II of the HVAC work is 
underway.  

 
Doug Ogle discussed the following: 

GPS was awarded funding for the K20 Gear UP Program which benefits our 7th graders.  
The results of the “Exit Survey” given to our employees that have left.  Most included  
favorable comments about our District. 
Number of Students is up 4 from last year. 

 
Dr. Simpson discussed the changes made to the Policy Handbook. 
 

 
 

 

160



Guthrie Public Schools 

Finance Committee Meeting 

October 2, 2018 

4:00 P.M.  

 

In Attendance: Dr. Mike Simpson, Doug Ogle, Carmen Walters, Michelle Chapple, 
Angie Smedley, Travis Sallee, Sharon Watts, and Michele Hamby 
 
Ms. Chapple opened the meeting informing the committee the first items were 
routine financial reports, speaking briefly on the Comparative Financial Report, 
noting expenses are up in both the General Fund and Child Nutrition Fund, mainly 
due to salary increases. 
 
Ms. Chapple spoke on the following: 
 
 2018-2019 Board Adopted Operating Budget 
 

A brief overview of the budget was presented with a comparison to 
last year’s budget. The General Fund reflects increases due to payroll 
cost, utilities, and security. The Building Fund budget has increased 
by $70,000.00, and the Estimate of Needs for Child Nutrition has 
decreased from last year and those funds will be closely monitored.  

 
Mr. Ogle spoke on the following: 

 
Agreement with PeopleFacts – Background Checks 
 

This is a renewal of our current agreement for quick background 
checks, at a cost of roughly $15 per test. 
 

Agreement with MTC – Transcripting 
 
 This is our annual MOU for the accreditation of the Math and Science 
 courses provided to our students at Meridian Technology Center. 
 

161



Exit Survey 

A brief review of the 39 responses provided to the exit survey of 
employees not returning for the 2018-2019 school year. 

Class Sizes 

Handouts with detailed information on class sizes at each site were 
presented. 

High School STEM Club Request 

Principal Chris LeGrande requests board approval for a   
STEM Club at the high school, partnering with Langston University for 
funding. 

Dr. Simpson spoke on the following: 

Bond Project Updates: 

A brief update including a change order for the current Junior High 
sidewalk project. 

Policy Changes 

Proposed changes in policy were distributed to board members 
present, with changes in red. 

162



Curriculum Committee Meeting Minutes 

October 2, 2018 

5:00 PM 

802 E. Vilas Avenue 

 

In Attendance: 

Dr. Simpson, Doug Ogle, Carmen Walters, Angie Smedley, Sharon Watts, Travis Sallee, and Jennifer 
Bennett-Johnson. 

Agenda Items Discussed: 

Ms. Walters:  

Beginning of Year Updates: 

● Discussion about how smoothly the transition to neighborhood schools has 
been. 

● Discussion that discipline problems have decreased because of the diversity of 
ages. 

Mr. Ogle: 

Junior High Health Fair 

● It was explained that Bethany Knight was assuming control of the fair. 
● Discussion that sex education will be taught in the science classrooms by the 

science teachers as part of the new science standards and not by the guidance 
counselor going forward.  

● Options for parents to opt their student out of sex-ed were discussed. 

Meridian Technology Transcripting 

● Discussion for transcripting Mathematics, Science, and Computer Science for 
students attending Meridian. 

High School STEM Club Proposal 

● Discussion of the request for a STEM club to be formed at the High School in 
partnership with Langston University. 

K20 Start UP Grant 

● Explanation and discussion of implementing the program which will monitor 
(using aggregate information), students from 7th-12th.  

● Questions about sourcing student information and purpose of the studies were 
asked and answered briefly. 

163



● Discussion of deadlines for approval of program. 

Exit Survey 

● Results of the survey were reviewed. 
● Discussion about results and their impact. 
● Discussion about possibility for a mentor program or other plan for new 

teachers. 

Class Sizes 

● Discussion of class sizes increasing. 
● Questions about how GPS schools class sizes compare to other districts. 
● Discussion about class size and district boundaries. 

 

164


	GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	9-10-18 Board Minutes.pdf
	GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	BOARD MINUTES

	9-25-18 Board Minutes.pdf
	GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	BOARD MINUTES

	C-27 Administration of Federal Programs Proposed Policy Changes.pdf
	ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL PROGRAMS
	The district participates in a variety of federal programs and receives funding (“Awards”) through those programs.  All district representatives will comply with all regulatory guidance and laws applicable to the individual programs.
	The district will regularly monitor its compliance efforts and make appropriate information available to the federal awarding agency (“FAA”), state pass-through entity (“State Entity”), inspectors general, and/or US comptroller.  The district will mak...
	Employee Compensation
	Regardless of the source of the funds, employees are paid pursuant to the district’s salary schedule for all work performed.  If personnel costs are paid with Awards, those costs will be calculated as wages and fringe benefits permitted in 2 C.F.R. § ...
	Employees who are paid with Award funds – in whole or in part - must maintain adequate records documenting the time spent performing each set of duties so that their compensation can be correctly allocated to the Award.  2 C.F.R. § 200.430
	Conflict of Interest / Mandatory Disclosure Regarding Contracting

	D-21 Family and Medical Leave Proposed Change.pdf
	FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

	F-13 Administration of Medicine to Students Proposed Changes.pdf
	ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICINE TO STUDENTS




